
 
 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING* 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 
Members of the public also have the option to join the meeting over Zoom  

(See below for more details)* 
 
 

7:00 P.M.                                                        May 21, 2024 
                                                                 

AGENDA 
 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
A. Approval of the April 16, 2024 and April 30, 2024 meeting minutes. 

 
 

II. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A.  The request of Kerrin J Parker Revocable Trust of 2012 (Owner), for property located 
at 86 Haven Road whereas relief is needed to construct an addition to the existing structure 
which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.521 to a) allow a 7.5 foot front 
yard where 10 feet is required by front yard averaging; b) to allow a building coverage of 
26% where 20% is allowed; and 2) Variance from Section 10.321 to allow of 
nonconforming structure or building to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without 
conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance.  Said property is located on Assessor 
Map 206 Lot 27 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-23-192) 

*The Board will reopen the public hearing to accept new information. 

B. The request of Atlas Commons LLC (Owner), for property located at 581 Lafayette 
Road whereas relief is needed for after-the-fact installation of an awning sign which 
requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.1251.20 to allow a 32 square foot 
awning sign whereas 20 square feet is allowed. Said property is located on Assessor Map 
229 Lot 8B and lies within the Gateway Corridor (G1) District. (LU-24-1) 

 
C. REQUEST TO WITHDRAW The request of Giri Portsmouth 505 Inc. (Owner), for 

property located at 505 US Route 1 Bypass whereas relief is needed to demolish the 
existing structure and construct a new hotel with a drive thru restaurant which requires the 
following: 1) Special Exception from 10.440 Use #10.40 hotel where it is permitted by 
Special Exception; 2) Variance from Section 10.835.32 to allow 5 feet between the lot line 



Agenda, Board of Adjustment Meeting May 21, 2024                                                Page 2 
 

and drive-thru and bypass lanes where 30 feet is required for each; 3) Variance from 
Section 10.835.31 to allow 18 feet between the menu and speaker board and the front lot 
line where 50 feet is required; 4) Variance from Section10.5B22.20 to allow up to 60 feet in 
building height within 50 feet of the street right-of-way line whereas up to 45 feet is 
permitted; 5) Variance from Section 10.5B34.70 to allow up to 60 feet in building height 
whereas 50 feet is permitted; 6) Variance from Section 10.5B34.60 to allow a 30 foot 
setback for a small commercial building whereas a maximum of 20 feet is permitted; 7) 
Variance from Section 10.5B33.20 to allow less than 75 percent front lot line buildout 
whereas a minimum of 75 percent is required for commercial buildings. Said property is 
located on Assessor Map 234 Lot 5 and lies within the Gateway Neighborhood Corridor 
(G1) District. (LU-24-44) REQUEST TO WITHDRAW 
 
 

III.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. The request of Ryan Leibundgut (Owner), for property located at 137 Walker 
Bungalow Road whereas relief is needed to demolish the front deck and construct a new 
deck on the front of the existing home which requires the following: 1) Variance from 
Section 10.521 to allow a 20 foot front yard where 30 feet is required; 2) Variance from 
Section 10.321 to allow of nonconforming structure or building to be extended, 
reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance. Said 
property is located on Assessor Map 202 Lot 4 and lies within the Single Residence B 
(SRB) (LU-24-10) 
 

B. The request of John C. Wallin and Jeanine M. Girgenti (Owners), for property located 
at 5 Cleveland Drive to amend the Variances granted on July 18, 2023 to install a 6 foot 
fence along the primary and secondary front of the property to include the following: 1) 
Variance from Section 10.515.13 to allow a 6 foot fence to be installed on top of a 3.5 foot 
tall retaining wall to create a total structure height of 9.5 feet where 4 feet is allowed. Said 
property is located on Assessor Map 247 Lot 74 and lies within the Single Residence B 
(SRB) District. (LU-23-92) 
 

C. The request of Edmund R. St. Pierre (Owner), for property located at 15 Mariette Drive 
whereas relief is needed to create a second driveway in front of the existing garage which 
requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.1114.31 to allow two driveways on a 
single lot where only one is allowed per section 3.3.2.3 of the Site Review Regulations. 
Said property is located on Assessor Map 292 Lot 167 and lies within the Single Residence 
B (SRB) District. (LU-24-57) 
 

D. The request of Elizabeth M. and Torben O. Arend (Owners), for property located at 1 
Rockaway Street whereas relief is needed to construct a porch and mudroom onto the 
front of the existing structure which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 
10.521 to allow a 24 foot front yard where 30 feet is required. Said property is located on 



Agenda, Board of Adjustment Meeting May 21, 2024                                                Page 3 
 

Assessor Map 230 Lot 11 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-24-
46) 

 
IV. ADJOURNMENT 

*Members of the public also have the option to join this meeting over Zoom, a unique meeting ID and 
password will be provided once you register. To register, click on the link below or copy and paste this 
into your web browser:  

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_M5znRV1-RQufUEHGWcXhdQ  

 

 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_M5znRV1-RQufUEHGWcXhdQ


MINUTES OF THE 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING 

EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 
7:00 P.M.                                         April 16, 2024                                                                                                                                   
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Phyllis Eldridge, Chair; Beth Margeson, Vice Chair; Members David 

Rheaume, Thomas Rossi, Paul Mannle, Jeffrey Mattson, Thomas 
Nies; Jody Record, Alternate; ML Geffert, Alternate 

 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Stefanie Casella, Planning Department  
                                                                                             

 
Chair Eldridge called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. She noted that the 865 Islington Street 
petition was withdrawn by the applicant.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 

A. Approval of the March 19, 2024 and the March 26, 2024 minutes. 
 
March 19 Minutes 
 
Mr. Nies requested the following changes: Regarding the approval of the February 21 minutes (page 
1), he said that he and Chair Eldridge abstained from the vote. On page 3, second paragraph, he said 
the 20.4 percent was rounded down to 20 percent and not 2 percent. Mr. Rheaume referred to the 
last paragraph on page 4 and said the word “terns” should be “terms”. 
 
Mr. Rheaume moved to approve the March 19 minutes as amended, seconded by Ms. Record. The 
motion passed unanimously, 7-0. 
 
March 26 Minutes 

Mr. Rossi moved to approve the March 26 minutes as presented, seconded by Mr. Mannle. Ms. 
Geffert abstained. The motion passed unanimously, 7-0.  
 

II.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. 550 Sagamore Avenue - Rehearing Request (LU-24-9) 
 
Mr. Rossi recused himself from the rehearing request and Ms. Record took a voting seat. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 2                               
 

DISCUSSION OF THE BOARD 
 
[Video Timestamp 6:18] Mr. Nies said there were two votes taken at the previous meeting, one to 
approve the variances and one to deny the variances and that both votes failed. He said it seemed to 
leave the applicant hanging and thought it conflicted with some of the guidance that the NH manual 
gave. Vice-Chair Margeson said all zoning boards of adjustment in New Hampshire except for 
Portsmouth had five voting members instead of seven, so aspects of the Statute and the NH 
Planning and Land Use regulations and guidance were not applicable to the Board. Mr. Nies said he 
would feel more comfortable with a vote that was a firm decision. Mr. Rheaume said at that 
particular previous meeting it was unlikely to get a motion that would garner four votes. He said the 
reason why the approval wasn’t granted was not explained in detail, but the key factor was to make 
sure there was sufficient information for the applicant to understand why the approval wasn’t 
granted. He explained the history behind it. Vice-Chair Margeson said she chaired that meeting and 
agreed that the minutes did not reflect the robust discussion the Board had but thought there was 
enough in the record to justify the decision. Mr. Nies said his concern with the voting issue is that 
the Board did not stop with the failed motion to approve, and if they had, then the applicant would 
have been denied the variance. He said the confusion was that a second vote was taken, which also 
failed. Vice-Chair Margeson said the subsequent motion to deny failed to get four votes and that she 
did not solicit comments because she felt that there was enough in the record to support it. Mr. 
Mattson said he accepted that a failure to pass is a denial based on the Board’s rules but that he 
could get on board with rehearing the petition because of both votes tying. It was further discussed. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Nies moved to grant the rehearing request. Mr. Mattson seconded. 
 
[Timestamp 17:39] Mr. Nies said the reason for the rehearing was that in effect there was no 
decision. He said the argument that the Board followed their rules is not accurate because they 
should have stopped with the denied variance and not voted a second time. If the motion to approve 
the variance failed, then in accordance with their rules, that stood as a denial, so therefore there 
wasn’t a need for another follow-up motion. He said because the second motion failed as well, he 
thought it clouds the issue because now there is a motion to pass that failed and a motion to deny 
that failed, and it raised the question of what the Board’s decision really was because neither motion 
passed. He said that was why he would argue for a rehearing solely on that point and thought it was 
a process issue. Mr. Mattson said his reasoning for seconding the motion was subtly different in that 
he accepted that the Board’s rules mean that the applicant was denied, but due to the infrequent 
nature of an affirmative and a negative failing to pass, he could see the usefulness of a clarifying 
vote of more affirmatively passing or being denied. 
 
Vice-Chair Margeson said she would not support the vote. She thought the rules said if the motion 
to grant a variance for a special exception resulted in a tie vote, the resulting decision is denial 
unless a subsequent motion is made that receives at least four affirmative votes. Mr. Mannle said if 
the motions were reversed and the motion for approval came first and ended up in a 3-3 tie, the 
Board would entertain a motion for denial and that both motions would end up not getting four 
votes each. He said the majority of any process was needed to move forward. Mr. Nies said if it had 
stopped at the first motion, it would have been consistent with the rules and clear that it was denied. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 3                               
 

He said the second vote confused the result. Mr. Rheaume said the NH Office of Planning and 
Development was a recommendation and not a law, but it did say that if a motion to grant failed by 
a two in favor three opposed margin in the case of five members, that did not mean that the variance 
was automatically disapproved. In such case, he said one of the members who disapproved the 
motion should propose their own new motion to disapprove the application and state the reason for 
denial. He said he thought the Board was consistent with that and further explained why. 
[Timestamp 23:47]. He said the Board could consider in the future whether they should make an 
effort to postpone until they had a full board. He said he would support the motion because Mr. 
Nies brought up the issue and he did not think the Board’s discussion was fully captured in the 
minutes or findings of fact. He said the Board should have been more diligent to state that to the 
applicant, and he thought that the combination of those two deficiencies in the Board’s review of 
the application could rise to the level of saying that a rehearing was warranted. Vice-Chair 
Margeson asked if the certified record was the transcript of the hearing or the meeting minutes. Ms. 
Casella said any written record on file was sent and a transcript could be requested. Vice-Chair 
Margeson said she would not change her mind, especially given that a certified record of the 
transcript could be provided. 
 
The motion to grant the request for rehearing failed by a vote of 3-4, with Ms. Record, Vice-Chair 
Margeson, Mr. Mannle, and Chair Eldridge voting in opposition to the motion. 
 
Vice-Chair Margeson moved to deny the request for rehearing, seconded by Mr. Nies. The motion 
to deny passed by a vote of 4-3, with Mr. Rheaume, Mr. Nies, and Mr. Mattson voting in opposition 
to the motion.    
 

B.  REQUEST TO POSTPONE The request of Kerrin J Parker Revocable Trust of 
2012 (Owner), for property located at 86 Haven Road whereas relief is needed to 
construct an addition to the existing structure which requires the following: 1) Variance 
from Section 10.521 to a) allow a 9 foot front yard where 10 feet is required by front 
yard averaging; b) to allow a building coverage of 29% where 20% is allowed; and 2) 
Variance from Section 10.321 to allow of nonconforming structure or building to be 
extended, reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to the requirements of the 
Ordinance.  Said property is located on Assessor Map 206 Lot 27 and lies within the 
Single Residence B (SRB) District. REQUEST TO POSTPONE (LU-23-192) 

Mr. Rossi returned to his voting seat and Ms. Record returned to alternate status.   
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Mannle moved to postpone the petition to the May 21 meeting, seconded by Mr. Mattson. 
 
Mr. Mannle said the Board routinely granted requests to postpone. Mr. Mattson said the applicant 
was working to make it a better application. Mr. Rheaume said the applicant was looking for a one-
month continuance to the May meeting, so the motion to postpone it to May 21 was appropriate, 
also noting that the Board allowed the postponement at the previous meeting. 
 
The motion passed unanimously, 7-0. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 4                               
 

C.  REQUEST TO POSTPONE The request of Atlas Commons LLC (Owner), for 
property located at 581 Lafayette Road whereas relief is needed for after-the-fact 
installation of an awning sign which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 
10.1251.20 to allow a 32 square foot awning sign whereas 20 square feet is allowed. 
Said property is located on Assessor Map 229 Lot 8B and lies within the Gateway 
Corridor (G1) District. (LU-24-1) REQUEST TO POSTPONE 

DECISION OF THE BOARD 

Mr. Rheaume said the Board only had information from the Staff Memo and nothing from the 
applicant, and he asked what additional information the City Staff looked for. Ms. Casella said the 
staff requested that the applicant provide the existing signage square footage on the site. 

Mr. Rossi moved to grant the request to postpone, seconded by Mr. Mannle. 

Mr. Rossi said if the applicant was not ready to proceed before the Board, it didn’t do the Board any 
good to force them to come and make a presentation. He said there was really no reason not to grant 
the request. Ms. Casella said the applicant was fine with a one-month postponement because they 
had to re-notice due to an error. Mr. Nies said it was the second postponement for a property that 
was out of compliance and that he hoped the applicant would be ready the next time. Mr. Rheaume 
said the Board should be given the full application or whatever condition it was in by the City Staff 
the next time and review it based on the merits at that time.  

The motion passed unanimously, 7-0. 
 

III.    NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. The request of Chinburg Development LLC (Owner), for property located at 6 
Boyd Road whereas relief is needed to demolish the existing structure and construct 
a new primary dwelling which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 
10.521 to allow a) 6,703 square feet of lot area where 7,500 square feet are required; 
b) 6,703 square feet of lot area per dwelling unit where 7,500 square feet are 
required; c) 85 feet of frontage where 100 feet are required; and d) 68 feet of lot 
depth where 70 feet are required. Said property is located on Assessor Map 175 Lot 
13 and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) District. (LU-24-23) 

 
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
[Timestamp 40:40] Attorney Monica Kaiser was present on behalf of the applicant. She reviewed 
the petition, noting that the proposed new home itself required no variances except for being 
proposed on a lot that did not meet the criteria for the existing house. She reviewed the criteria. 
 
[Timestamp 49:28] Vice-Chair Margeson said the Board approved the variance two years before for 
the eight-condo units, and at that point, 6 Boyd Road was considered for redevelopment. She asked 
why that wasn’t included in the original variance application. Attorney Kaiser said the ownership 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 5                               
 

changed. Mr. Rheaume said it wasn’t clear to him because there were four properties in the defined 
area that included the next petition to be heard, and the applicant’s client owned at least two of 
those four properties. He asked if they owned the lot being developed with the condo complex. 
Attorney Kaiser said she believed they did. Mr. Rheaume said the lot depth is described as 68 feet 
but that he did not see any drawing dimension in the Board’s packet, and he asked how that 
dimension was calculated. Attorney Kaiser said she thought it was the average of the two side lot 
lines. Mr. Rheaume said when he did it, he came up with a much larger number than 68. Attorney 
Kaiser said the measurements might have to be taken at certain intervals along the lot or maybe a 
mistake was made. Mr. Rheaume said that in terms of depth, the applicant might be closer to the 
requirement. He said the applicant was running about 700 square feet short, so if the client owned 
both properties, he wondered why there was no way to resolve that lot area issue. He said it would 
have been ideal at the time that the condo complex was proposed if that action was taken to make 
the lot more conforming, but the client owned all the property lines other than the one against Boyd 
Road and the two hotels. He said he wanted to understand the client’s perspective on why they 
weren’t trying to make this more conforming and require less relief from the Board. Attorney 
Kaiser said the existing home violated the rear setback and there was a proposal to construct a new 
home that conforms and pulls itself further away from that lot line. She said there was no difference 
between a single-family home there now and a new one, and what was proposed would be an 
improvement on the rear setback. Ms. Casella said the lot depth requirement is the average between 
the front and the rear, and that she discovered that the property records had not been updated to 
reflect the new lot lines. She said if the applicant could not support a request they made, the Board 
could consider removing that portion of the request. It was further discussed. Ms. Casella said her 
concern was that the Board would grant relief for something that didn’t exist. Mr. Rossi said the 
Board wasn’t sure of the lot’s depth, so they didn’t have the information they needed. Attorney 
Kaiser said there must be a mistake and offered to withdraw the request for the lot’s depth. Mr. 
Rossi said he thought the lot’s shape was a distorted trapezoid and the left lot line was at an angle 
that would measure much longer than the lot’s natural depth, so he suspected that the 68 feet was a 
straight shot back from the front line to the parallel rear lot line. He said he was reluctant not to 
consider the 68 feet just because the Board wasn’t sure how it was calculated and thought the 68 
feet reflected the current condition. Mr. Rheaume asked Attorney Kaiser if she was confident that 
6,703 square feet was the correct lot area. Attorney Kaiser agreed.  
 
Chair Eldridge opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. 
 
SPEAKING IN OPPOSITION TO THE PETITION 
 
Chris Randall of 80 Diamond Drive said when his grandparents purchased 212 Woodbury Avenue 
in 1923, it was an intergenerational home. He said his uncle owned the bungalow at 216 Woodbury 
Avenue and his grandfather sold the ranch at 214 Woodbury Avenue to his nephew. He said he had 
a hard time understanding how Portsmouth had a tremendous housing shortage and the fact that 
those three homes were considered unsubstantial. He said there was no hardship.  



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 6                               
 

Phyllis Randell of 99 Boyd Road said when the project for the corner of Woodbury Avenue and 
Boyd Road was put forward, part of the agreement was that the homes on Boyd Avenue and 
adjacent homes on Woodbury Avenue would be renovated. She said the neighborhood had to 
endure the neglect of the house on Woodbury Avenue for years and now the developers were about 
to renege on the original plan. She said the new owner should be held to the original agreement and 
that there was no reason for the homes to be demolished except for corporate greed.  
 
Martin Ryan of 221 Woodbury Avenue gave the Board members a handout with photos of the site 
and said the neighborhood had a wonderful history. As an abutter, he said he was against any 
further intensification of construction activities at the Chinburg construction site. He said that, after 
living with an abandoned house for over two decades, he wanted a win for the neighborhood so he 
had agreed to the previous developer’s proposal. He said the neighborhood lost a one-of-a-kind 
Victorian and now the developer was proposing to remove a classic bungalow house and a house 
that had been part of the neighborhood’s fabric for years. He said the contract and developer had not 
been good neighbors and asked that the Board deny any further demolitions. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
Mark Ayotte of 9 Garden Street said the former owner Mr. Bailey was given a variance for the four 
pieces of property and wondered if that variance governed what happened on those four lots now. 
He said it wasn’t a positive process for the neighbors for applicants to get approvals and then go 
back to the Board and change them whenever they wanted to. 
 
Sharon Kempy of 55 Boyd Road said there was nothing wrong with the homes and that she didn’t 
understand how construction companies could change the rules in place.   
 
Karen Foye of 79 Boyd Road said she was opposed to tearing down the homes because the 
agreement was to renovate them. She said Portsmouth had a housing crisis and many homes were 
being torn town and million-dollar ones were taking their place. 
 
Attorney Kaiser said the Board had to focus on the variance being requested. She said the site plan 
indicated that one variance was granted to allow eight dwellings on the adjacent property, and she 
did not believe relief was granted for 6 Boyd Avenue or for the other Woodbury Avenue property 
petition. She said as the subsequent purchasers of the development, Chinburg had to proceed in 
accordance with the submitted plans for that adjacent property and that there was no condition on 
the relief granted on that property that said what had to be done with the properties on adjacent 
sides. She said Chinburg had done a lot of work restoring mill buildings and she didn’t think it was 
fair to call out the demolition of other structures as if it was something they did all the time. She 
said every property owner had the right to build up his property or tear his house down, and she 
noted that every one of the properties purchased was sold by a long-term community member.  
 
No one else spoke, and Chair Eldridge closed the public hearing. 
 
DISCUSSION OF THE BOARD 
 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 7                               
 

[Timestamp 1:31:22] Mr. Rossi said he was one of the people who voted against the development of 
the commercial property as it is today but that it was irrelevant to the current discussion except that 
he wanted to acknowledge the concerns of the neighbors, who he thought all raised interesting 
points. He said it was worth going back to the variance request for the commercial property and 
seeing what was promised because when the Board approved variances, they approved them as 
presented and advertised. He said it was an interesting lesson for everyone with regard to the two 
properties being presented for variances. He said the written application indicated that there would 
be improvements to the existing homes/lots, which was lawyer’s speak for being able to do 
whatever they wanted, so he did not think that there was anything in the original application for the 
variance that said the purchaser promised they would keep the homes as existing on the lot. He said 
the purchaser may have made other promises to individuals but that it wasn’t what was presented to 
the Board and was not approved. He said one of the rationales for the commercial property was to 
present the opportunity for moderately priced homes in Portsmouth, which obviously had not 
happened, but that had no bearing on the current application. He said maybe it was a lesson learned 
for the Board because the members were often told that if they approved variances that pertained to 
the density of development, it would increase the housing stock in certain locations and bring prices 
down in Portsmouth, but he thought it did not seem to work that way. He said the Board did not 
change the lot lines or how the lots were allocated in the original application, and the only variance 
that was presented and approved was regarding the density of development and how many 
dwellings could be put on a single lot. He said the Board focused on the specific variance being 
requested and in this case, it was simply that they would allow the same use of the property, which 
was a single-family residence, and that it would be on an existing lot that was already 
nonconforming for that use. He said it was not in the Board’s jurisdiction to make a judgment on 
the developer’s competence and how they were managing the site. He said the proposed variance 
was to simply allow the continuation of that use with a new building that performs the same 
function and that he was in favor of granting the variance.  
 
Mr. Nies verified that the meeting was held in April 2022 and was a request from Tuck. He noted 
that the written request granting the variance would not diminish surrounding property values, and 
also indicated that the closest abutters to the eight units were three remaining single family units to 
be purchased by Tuck and renovated. He said it went on to say that the three existing homes to 
remain were intended to be rehabilitated and their adjoining yards cleaned up. He noted that it said 
homes and not properties, which he interpreted as support for the idea that Tuck said they were not 
going to remove the homes. He asked what it meant when the Board said certain representations 
made at the meeting are considered to be conditions of granting the variance. Vice-Chair Margeson 
explained that in April 2022 the homes were identified by their lot numbers, and anything that the 
applicant says is considered conditions upon which the variance is granted as presented and 
advertised. She said they did not place stipulations in their variances and everything said in the 
presentation was considered a condition. Mr. Rossi said the sentence read that eight reasonably-
priced homes would be provided and include vegetative screenings and significant improvements of 
the three existing homes/lots, which he read as the lot would be improved by demolishing and 
rebuilding a house, but he noted that it pertained to a variance made two years ago and that he did 
not know to what extent the Board could hold the other two properties. He said it wasn’t really an 
enforceable item to them because there were two different properties that could be owned by two 
different people, even though they were not, and he didn’t see how it was in the Board’s jurisdiction 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 8                               
 

to say that because an adjacent property had certain representations, those representations would be 
binding to the owners of the current properties under consideration. Vice-Chair Margeson said it 
was clear when the application came before the Board in 2022 what the applicant would do with the 
other three lots and that they would be improved. She said it wasn’t part of the variance criteria 
because they were separate lots. She said her concern was with common ownership, and she did not 
agree with the variance the Board approved. She said the application before the Board was a 
completely different one and her concern was that the lots were all going to be merged into one lot 
or one homeowners association. Mr. Mannle said he voted for the development because he assumed 
that what the applicant said about the two houses in question being be renovated or improved would 
be true. He said he disagreed with Attorney Kaiser’s comment that everyone would sell their lots to 
developers because he didn’t see the market being high for a single-family house that abuts an 8-
unit construction site, which would decrease the value of that home and would have been a good 
reason to deny that variance, but it didn’t happen. He said the sole owner of the entire block had 
made no effort to make the specific lot more conforming, and he did not see the hardship.  
 
Chair Eldridge said the Board always approved that type of request and that the house would not 
take up more space than the existing house took up and would have the same lack of depth. She said 
the ask was small and separate from the 8-unit request. Mr. Rheaume said the Board had to be 
careful in saying that they always approved that type of situation because each application was 
unique. He said the lot was not meeting the zoning ordinance requirements, and he had concerns 
about a recent and still viable opportunity for the property to be brought into a lot more compliance 
in terms of the overall square footage. He said the applicant, through the previous variance on the 
adjoining lot, got their cake, and requesting the additional variance on this lot that was not presented 
as part of the original package would have them eat their cake too. He said he was concerned about 
the condos being very close to the lot and impinging upon it. He noted that there used to be more 
open space around the lot, which made its substandard condition more acceptable, and he felt that 
the applicant had an opportunity to get the property cleaner and not have as many units and could 
have made it more of a conforming use with just a frontage issue. He said he didn’t think it met the 
hardship criteria or the overall spirit of the ordinance and couldn’t see how the Board could 
legitimately grant the variances. He noted that Chinburg was a conscientious developer and didn’t 
think the range was beyond their ability to renovate. Mr. Mattson said the applicant could ask to 
change the lot lines but in this case the owner happened to own the adjacent lot, which isn’t always 
the situation. He thought the Board should not consider the neighboring lots and treat the 
application as a standalone one because a lot of what was being discussed was not relevant. Chair 
Eldridge said she didn’t see how it was a standalone application because there was a piece of land 
that was undersized and the applicant wanted to build a house on their land that is limited.  
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Rossi moved to grant the variance for the application as presented and advertised, seconded by 
Vice-Chair Margeson. 
 
[Timestamp 1:53:10] Mr. Rossi said granting the variance would not be contrary to the public 
interest and would observe the spirit of the ordinance. He said he did not see any impact on the 
public interest with regard to safety or even creating a more overcrowded condition within the 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 9                               
 

neighborhood. He did not think there was anything in the petition that was the general character of 
the area and he believed it satisfied Sections 10.233.21 and .22. He said granting the variance would 
do substantial justice, noting that even though there was a feeling among some of the abutters that 
they were losing a piece of history, it really was not what was being considered unless it was part of 
the Historic District. He said substantial justice in this case meant that there would be a tangible loss 
to the public that would outweigh the benefit to the owner, and he could not see nor did he hear in 
the comments any substantial loss to the public that would outweigh the rights of the owner to build 
on the property as they saw fit. He said granting the variance would not diminish the values of 
surrounding properties because most of the surrounding properties were the condo units, which 
were the immediate abutters, and he saws no impact on those. He said they were all owned by the 
same person, and in this case it was relevant because he did not believe that the owner would 
change the lot in a manner that would reduce the value of his other holdings in the neighborhood. 
He said literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance would result in an unnecessary 
hardship. He said a hardship was defined in a particular way for the purpose of land use 
determinations, and that it was whether something about the property made it hard to use in full 
compliance with the zoning ordinance. He said the property’s hardship is its preexisting lack of 
conformity with the variances being requested, like the depth, the frontage, and the total lot area. He 
said those things could not be changed, and to continue the nonconforming use, one would really 
have to consider those things to be a hardship for the property. He said he believed that Section 
10.233.25 of the ordinance was satisfied by the existing nature of the lot. 
 
Vice-Chair Margeson concurred. She said the request was for the frontage and the lot depth, and the 
lot depth was 68 feet and probably didn’t even require the 68 feet, and the street frontage was 85 
feet. She said there was nothing the owner of the lot could have done to increase the street frontage 
as a result of the condo development next to it, which led to the hardship, and that the hardship was 
that the previous variance granted was for one single lot that precluded actually increasing the street 
frontage on the lot, so therefore the interpretation of the enforcement of the provisions for the street 
frontage did not make sense for this lot. Mr. Rossi noted that the applicant requested relief from 
Section 10.311, which he thought was not appropriate because the Board would be saying that the 
lot did not require a variance in order to be developed. He said that didn’t make sense because they 
were granting the variance that is required. Vice-Chair Margeson said that related to the minimum 
lot area and the street frontage. She said another condition of the lot was that it was undersized. Mr. 
Rossi said the applicant was getting the variance on Section 10.521. Ms. Casella said she addressed 
that issue in her memo and that the request from the applicant was for Section 10.311. She said she 
didn’t believe that was applicable because it was the provision that said variances are required if the 
other dimensions can’t be met. She said the applicant was requesting those variances, so that 
eliminated that need. She said she spoke to the applicant and that it was removed and not put into 
the notice. Mr. Rossi said he was just acknowledging that he believed the Board was correct. 
 
Mr. Rheaume said he would not support the motion because he was concerned that the argument for 
hardship was that it was something that existed, so therefore it constituted a hardship. He said that 
wasn’t how the Board’s criteria worked. He said the Board was saying that it couldn’t be changed 
when it was possible to get it changed. He said the main thing the Board was looking at was the 
proper amount of spacing between residential properties, and by building right up against the 
property line, a situation was created for relief for the property for a new use was not appropriate. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 10                               
 

The motion passed by a vote of 4-3, with Mr. Rheaume, Mr. Nies, and Mr. Mannle voting in 
opposition. 
 
Note: At this point in the meeting, Ms. Geffert left the meeting. 
 

B. The request of Chinburg Development LLC (Owner), for property located at 216 
Woodbury Avenue whereas relief is needed to demolish the existing structure and 
construct a new primary dwelling which requires the following: 1) Variance from 
Section 10.521 to allow 66 feet of frontage where 100 feet are required. Said 
property is located on Assessor Map 175 Lot 3 and lies within the General Residence 
A (GRA) District. (LU-24-24) 

 
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
[Timestamp 2:09:55] Attorney Monica Kaiser was present on behalf of the applicant. She reviewed 
the petition, noting that the lot had 66 feet of frontage that had not been changed by the lot line 
adjustment. She said the new owner wanted to build a home that would comply with all 
dimensional requirements except for the frontage. She reviewed the criteria in detail. 
 
The Board had no questions. Chair Eldridge opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke, and Chair Eldridge closed the public hearing. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Rossi moved to grant the variance for the application as presented and advertised, seconded by 
Mr. Mattson. 
 
[Timestamp 2:16:39] Mr. Rossi said granting the variance would not be contrary to the public 
interest or to the spirit of the ordinance. He said the lot is in a zone where the use is the correct one 
and the proposed single-family residence would replace the existing single-family residence, so 
there would be no change in serving the public interest with the new structure v. the one that was 
currently there. He said substantial justice would be done because the lot would be used in the exact 
manner in which the variance is being proposed and will continue to be proposed, so there would be 
no loss to the public by continuing that use. He said it would not diminish the values of surrounding 
properties because the applicant’s property was abutted on one side by a hotel and on the other side 
by the same owner’s property, so it was illogical to assume that the proposed redevelopment of the 
lot would dimmish the value of either the hotel or the property owned by the same person on the 
other side of the lot. Relating to hardship, he said the special condition of the property is that it is 
bounded on two sides by developed lots and the side lot lines cannot be moved without bringing 
some other property equally out of conformance, therefore the 68-ft front lot line is unalterable in 
any way that would bring the lot in conformance for this purpose. He said the hardship was the 
nature of the property and the lot that could not be altered to come into full compliance with the 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 11                               
 

ordinance for the already existing use, so it was unreasonable to apply the ordinance’s strict 
requirements for continuing this use. 
 
Mr. Mattson concurred. He said regarding the hardship, the general public purposes of the 
ordinance’s provision for the specific application regarding the street frontage, and as with the street 
frontage in the other yards’ dimensional requirements, was to preserve light, air, and privacy. He 
said in this case, even with the inadequate street frontage, the dwelling would still be entirely within 
the setbacks and meet that purpose, so there was no fair and substantial relationship for this 
situation. Mr. Rheaume said he would support the motion. He said the lot was reconfigured by the 
applicant’s predecessor to be fully compliant in every way other than the street frontage. He said 
one of the other aspects of the hardship was that it was bordered by a large open space associated 
with the hotel use on the next property over, so in terms of the true intent of public concerns with 
the ordinance as to the feel of overcrowding, that helped provide relief on that side. 
 
The motion passed unanimously, 7-0. 

 
C. The request of Cyrus Beer and Erica Gardner Beer (Owners), for property located 

at 64 Mount Vernon Street to amend the Variances granted on March 19, 2024 for 
the demolition of the existing detached shed and construction of a new shed to 
include the following: 1) Variance from section 10.521 to allow a 2 foot side yard 
where 10 feet is required. Said property is located on Assessor Map 111 Lot 30 and 
lies within the General Residence B (GRB) and Historic Districts. (LU-24-20) 

 
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
[Timestamp 2:22:20] The applicant Cyrus Beer said he made a mistake by missing the point in the 
corner that was less than five feet when he asked for a 5-ft side setback. He said he thought it was a 
side setback but that it actually wrapped around the corner, so he was requesting a change of a 2-ft 
setback. He said it would still be five feet along the south wall but would allow that corner to be 
built. He said the location or size of the shed would not change, and he reviewed the criteria. 
The Board had no questions. Chair Eldridge opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke, and Chair Eldridge closed the public hearing. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Vice-Chair Margeson moved to grant the variance for the petition as presented and advertised, 
seconded by Mr. Mannle. 
 
[Timestamp 2:27:10] Vice-Chair Margeson referred to Sections 10.233.21 and .22 and said granting 
the variances would not be contrary to the public interest and would observe the spirit of the 
ordinance. She said the Board often looked at side yard setbacks to preserve light, air, and space 
between properties, but in this case it was only for a shed in the back of the property and not for any 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 12                               
 

kind of bigger structure, so she found that the spirit and public interest or the ordinance were met. 
Referring to Section 10.233.23, she said substantial justice would be done because the public would 
not lose by the granting of the variance for a minimal setback for a shed. Referring to Section 
10.233.24, she said granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
She said the Board previously granted it for five feet and it was just a loss of another three feet, and 
the surrounding properties would not be harmed but in fact would gain by improvements made to 
the applicant’s property. Referring to Section 10.233.25, she said literal enforcement of the 
provision of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship. She said the property has special 
conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area, and owing to those special 
conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist between the general public purposes of 
the ordinance’s provision and the specific application of that provision to this property, and the 
proposed use is reasonable. She said the shed was an accessory structure to a house in a residential 
area and the property did have special conditions because the property’s topography began to trend 
upward as one got further away from the side yard lot line, making it difficult to put the shed further 
in from the lot line. She said it was just a certain corner of the shed that meets a jog on the property 
line and was a de minimis request. Mr. Mannle concurred and had nothing to add. 
 
Mr. Nies asked if the ownership changed, would it mean that the new owner could enlarge the shed 
up to two feet from the property line without coming before the Board. Ms. Casella said if a new 
owner said the variance was granted for two feet, they would have to prove that they could meet the 
two feet. She said that wasn’t the case with this application and the five feet still stands on the back 
and the other side yard. Mr. Rheaume said that was his concern as well, and he recommended a 
stipulation saying that it is a 2-ft dimension from the jog in the property line and not the overall side 
yard. Vice-Chair Margeson and Mr. Mannle accepted the stipulation. 
 
The amended motion was: 
 
Vice-Chair Margeson moved to grant the variance for the petition as presented and advertised, with 
the following condition: 

1. The 2-ft side yard setback only pertains to the area of the jog. 
 
Mr. Mannle seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously, 7-0. 
 

D. The request of O’Brien Family Revocable Trust of 2018 (Owner), for property 
located at 3 Moebus Terrace whereas relief is needed demolish the existing 
structure and construct a new primary structure which requires the following: 1) 
Variance from Section 10.521 to allow a) 10,823 square feet of lot area where 15,000 
square feet is required; and b) 10,823 square feet of lot area per dwelling unit where 
15,000 square feet is required. Said property is located on Assessor Map 207 Lot 21 
and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-24-40)  

 
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
[Timestamp 2:36:30] Attorney John Bosen was present on behalf of the applicant, with the owners, 
architect Carla Goodnight, and engineer Eric Weinberg. Attorney Bosen reviewed the application, 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 13                               
 

noting that the existing home was old and was served by a private septic system near Little Harbor. 
He said the plan was to replace the home with a single-family one that met all the dimensional 
requirements except for the pre-existing lot area deficiency. He reviewed the criteria in detail. 
 
The Board had no questions. Chair Eldridge opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke. 
 
SPEAKING IN OPOSITION TO THE PETITION 
 
Betsy Tabor of 55 Pleasant Point Drive said she and her husband loved being able to look out and 
see in all directions. She said the 1958 planners of the neighborhood built the houses close together 
but adhered to a vision of creating view corridors between the houses, which would not be possible 
if she or the next-door neighbors built two-story additions out to their lot lines. She said the 
proposed house footprint was 43 percent greater than the original on an already nonconforming lot, 
and the new plans were for 67-1/2 feet of length because the garage was going from underneath the 
house to the side. She said increasing the footprint from 1400 sf to 2,000 sf and two stories high 
would give her a walled-in effect and take away her view. She said she could not understand the 
need for such a larger house and that losing her view corridor was a loss for her.  
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
Attorney Bosen submitted photos to the Board showing the view from the front and back of Ms. 
Tabor’s home, a view that had a lot of vegetation and was covered by an 8-ft fence. He asked if that 
particular view was one to enjoy looking at the water. He said there were no view easement or view 
corridors on record at the Register of Deeds and that the Tabors’ objection didn’t have anything to 
do with the variances requested. He said the zoning relief requested was because the lot was small, 
and all the dimensional aspects of the zoning ordinance were met. He said there were six lots in the 
area, five of which needed the same relief that the applicant was requesting because they were all 
small lots. He said he believed that all the zoning criteria were met. 
 
No one else spoke, and Chair Eldridge closed the public hearing. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Rheaume moved to grant the variance for the application as presented and advertised, 
seconded by Mr. Rossi. 
 
[Timestamp 2:48:42] Mr. Rheaume said he understood the applicant’s concern about the loss of a 
view and noted that the Board had several arguments over the years about views being disrupted by 
a proposed change, but he said it was necessary to place some type of restriction of a subject parcel 
to preserve that view. He said if there was a master plan put in place to preserve certain view sheds 
when the subdivision occurred, it had to be recorded as part of the deeds of each of the properties 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 14                               
 

going forward. He said even if the applicant kept the current home, they had a right to add an 
expanded garage and place it in any perceived view shed of any abutting property. He said granting 
the variance would not be contrary to the public interest and would observe the spirit of the 
ordinance. He said the applicant made a good argument that there is an overall characteristic to the 
neighborhood. He said when the subdivision was created, the same sized lots were created with 
homes placed on them, and the applicant was not proposing to do anything different by placing 
another single-sized family home on the lot and making it slightly more conforming. He said it 
would conform with the other setback requirements of the ordinance. He said substantial justice 
would be done, noting that the purpose of the ordinance in this case was to prevent overcrowding. 
He said the established neighborhood was designed around the applicant’s sized lot and the 
applicant was not proposing to change any of that but simply wanted to take advantage of the 
allowed zoning characteristics of the lot and to build a new home within those characteristics. He 
said granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties because the 
applicant was building out and would be in conformance with the ordinance on a lot with similar 
characteristics to the other lots around it, so it would not negatively impact other property values. 
Relating to the hardship, he said it was a macro look of the characteristics of the envisioned lot in 
this particular zone compared to what is here and was substandard in terms of total square footage 
but was representative of a micro area, so he did not think it was different than what the overall 
zoning objectives are. He said there were unique characteristics to the property relative to the 
overall expectations of the zone that it happened to lie in, which indicated that it was not truly fair 
to apply the requirements of that zone on this parcel. He said the property could not be reasonably 
used in strict conformance with the ordinance. He said the applicant was not proposing to change 
the use of a single-family home, although the size and dimensions were different, but the applicant 
could have placed an addition on the existing home that would have those same characteristics. Mr. 
Rossi said the Board saw a lot of cases of an existing use like this that will continue, but it was a 
nonconforming lot and there was no basis for denying a variance request in many of those 
circumstances. He said several suggestions were made concerning things not in the zoning 
ordinance, but unless there was some modification made to the ordinance stating that other things 
that could be considered with some kind of formula about how large or tall of a house could be put 
on a nonconforming lot where all the setbacks are still conforming, there really was nothing the 
Board could say was correct or not correct, so within the limitation of the ordinance as it stands, he 
thought the Board’s decision was correct. 
 
Vice-Chair Margeson said she would not support the motion because the lot and anything that 
needed to be built on it did not need to have relief due to the size of the lot, but it was almost two-
thirds less than what was needed for the SRB zone, so that building coverage is 19.8 percent, which 
is close to 20 percent but the 20 percent goes with the 15,000 square feet and not with the 10,823 
square feet. She said the renderings of the house showed it without much elevation, and when she 
toured the area she found that the house was high up. She said the proposal would alter the essential 
character of the neighborhood. Mr. Rheaume said he didn’t think there was any indication that the 
applicant would be getting extra coverage and said it met the 20 percent requirement. Chair 
Eldridge said she didn’t think the neighborhood had an essential character because there were many 
different types of architecture in it, including new additions. She said the house was high and would 
be noticeable but that it met all dimensional criteria. Mr. Mattson said it was interesting that a 
property could meet both the street frontage and lot depth but still be too small in lot size. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 16, 2024        Page 15                               
 

The motion passed by a vote of 5-2, with Vice-Chair Margeson and Mr. Mannle voting in 
opposition. 
 

E. WITHDRAWN BY APPLICANT The request of Maxico LLC (Owner), for 
property located at 865 Islington Street whereas relief is needed to establish a yoga 
studio with more than 2,000 square feet of gross floor area which requires a Special 
Exception from Section 10.440, Use #4.41 where it is permitted by Special 
Exception. Said property is located on Assessor Map 172 Lot 11 and lies within the 
Character District 4-W (CD4-W). (LU-24-41) WITHDRAWN BY APPLICANT  

 
The petition was withdrawn by the applicant. 
 
IV.   OTHER BUSINESS 

 
A. Training Opportunities  

 
i. NH OPD Spring 2024 Planning and Zoning Conference – May 11, 2024 

ii. OPD Planning Lunch Webinar “Welcome to the Board” – April 18, 2024 
 

Chair Eldridge said the conference was worthwhile. Ms. Casella said the lunch webinar was part of 
the monthly webinar series that OPD did. 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting adjourned at 10:03 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Joann Breault 
BOA Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING 

EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 
7:00 P.M.                                         April 30, 2024                                                                                                                                   
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Beth Margeson, Vice Chair; Paul Mannle; Thomas Nies; Thomas 

Rossi; Jody Record, Alternate; ML Geffert, Alternate   
 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Phyllis Eldridge, Chair; David Rheaume; Jeffrey Mattson 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Jillian Harris, Planning Department  
                                                                                             
 
Acting-Chair Margeson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Alternates Ms. Record and Ms. 
Geffert took voting seats for the evening. Acting-Chair Margeson stated that originally there were 
only supposed to be five voting members present and the applicants were told before the meeting 
that they would have the option to postpone according to the rules. She said even though there were 
now six members, the applicants could still postpone because they were told that there would only 
be five Board members present. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. The request of Elizabeth Coursen (Owner), for property located at 229 Pleasant 

Street, Unit 4 whereas relief is needed for the following: 1) Variance from Section 
10.515.14 to install a mechanical unit 5.5 feet from the side property line whereas 10 
feet is required. Said property is located on Assessor Map 108 Lot 6 and lies within the 
Mixed Residential Office (MRO) and Historic District. (LU-24-42) 

 
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
[Timestamp 4:00] The applicant Beth Coursen was present and chose not to postpone the petition. 
She said she lived in and owned the carriage house on the property and could see other mini splits 
from several properties around her that did not seem to meet the regulations for the district. She 
reviewed the petition and the criteria. 
 
[Timestamp 8:14] Mr. Nies asked the applicant why she thought the chosen location was the best 
one for the use. Ms. Coursen said that she submitted an application for a mini split the previous year 
that called for it to be in the front of the carriage house but was told that its efficiency would be 
diminished because the lines to the inside units would be longer. She said both the front and the 
back of the house were visible from Richmond Street and that the mini split’s new location between 
her property and the adjoining one would only be visible to the adjoining property owner. 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 30, 2024        Page 2                               
 

Mr. Rossi referred to the memo from Brigitte Bailey and the condominium association and asked if 
both the properties referenced in the memo were part of the condo association. Ms. Coursen said the 
Morrow property was not part of the condo association but was the adjoining property on Richmond 
Street and that the owner submitted a letter stating that she had no objection. 
 
Acting-Chair Margeson opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke, and Acting-Chair Margeson closed the public hearing. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Rossi moved to grant the variance for the project as presented and advertised, seconded by Mr. 
Mannle. 
 
[Timestamp 11:10] Mr. Rossi said granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest 
and would observe the spirit of the ordinance. He said the general purpose of the setback 
requirements in the zoning ordinance was to preserve open space and light between structures, and 
the mini split was a low profile unit that would not cast any shadows in any significant bulking way 
or infringe upon the open space between the applicant’s property and the adjoining one. He said it 
would do substantial justice because there would be no loss to the public due to the unit being 
placed out of sight of the general public, so it would not have a detrimental impact on the character 
of the Historic District. He said, therefore, that denying the variance would create a burden for the 
applicant that would not be properly counterbalanced by a loss to the public for approving the 
variance. He said granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties, 
noting that the most adjacent abutter submitted a letter of support for the variance, which indicated 
that the person in the best position to estimate the impact on the value of their property has 
determined that it would not have a negative impact on the value of their property. He said literal 
enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance would result in an unnecessary hardship. He said the 
hardship of the property was its location in a crowded area with substandard-sized lots, and the 
purpose of the ordinance is not to prevent modernization of HVAC units within a residential 
community like the applicant’s, therefore the literal enforcement of the ordinance does not have any 
bearing on the purpose of the ordinance. Mr. Mannle concurred. He said these types of variance 
requests, especially for mechanical  units, are quite common in a city that is 400 years old and that 
the Board should approve it. Ms. Geffert said she wanted to encourage mini splits as long as there 
was no real dimensional change because they were a great replacement for air conditioning. 
 
The motion passed unanimously, 6-0. 
 

B. The request of Giri Portsmouth 505 Inc. (Owner), for property located at 505 US Route 
1 Bypass whereas relief is needed to demolish the existing structure and construct a new 
hotel with a drive-thru restaurant which requires the following: 1) Special Exception 
from 10.440 Use #10.40 hotel where it is permitted by Special Exception; 2) Variance 
from Section 10.835.32 to allow 5 feet between the lot line and drive-thru and bypass 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 30, 2024        Page 3                               
 

lanes where 30 feet is required for each; 3) Variance from Section 10.835.31 to allow 18 
feet between the menu and speaker board and the front lot line where 50 feet is required; 
4) Variance from Section10.5B22.20 to allow up to 60 feet in building height within 50 
feet of the street right-of-way line whereas up to 45 feet is permitted; 5) Variance from 
Section 10.5B34.70 to allow up to 60 feet in building height whereas 50 feet is 
permitted; 6) Variance from Section 10.5B34.60 to allow a 30 foot setback for a small 
commercial building whereas a maximum of 20 feet is permitted; 7) Variance from 
Section 10.5B33.20 to allow less than 75 percent front lot line buildout whereas a 
minimum of 75 percent is required for commercial buildings. Said property is located on 
Assessor Map 234 Lot 5 and lies within the Gateway Neighborhood Corridor (G1) 
District.  (LU-24-44) 

 
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
Attorney John Bosen was present on behalf of the applicant and said they wished to postpone the 
petition, given the makeup and size of the Board that evening 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Acting-Chair Margeson noted that she told the applicants before the meeting that there would only 
be five voting members, so the applicants had the option to postpone  
 
Mr. Mannle moved to postpone the petition to the May 21 meeting, seconded by Ms. Geffert. The 
motion passed unanimously, 6-0. 
 
 

C. The request of Joshua P. Lanzetta (Owner), for property located at 255 McKinley 
Road whereas relief is needed to construct additions to an existing single-family 
residence which requires the following: 1) Variances from Section 10.521 to allow a) a 
front yard of 18 feet where 30 feet is required; b) a rear yard of 14 feet where 30 feet is 
required; and c) 23% building coverage where 20% is the maximum allowed. Said 
property is located on Assessor Map 250 Lot 16 and lies withing the Single Residence B 
(SRB) District. (LU-24-38) 

 
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION 
 
[Timestamp 19:00 ] The applicant Joshua Lanzetta was present to review the petition. He said his 
home was small and that he wanted to expand the western side of the house to make the living room 
larger, add a front and back landing, and add a mud room and potentially an office space. He 
showed the neighborhood context and said it had 80 percent nonconformity and that he wanted to 
mimic the existing setbacks for the front and back abutting properties. He said he had four letters of 
support from his closest neighbors as well as support from other neighbors. He showed a realtor’s 
comp appraisal and the concept of the architectural design and he reviewed the criteria. 
[Timestamp 37:33] Mr. Mannle asked why the maps shown by the applicant during his presentation 
were not part of the packet. Ms. Harris said the presentation was given to her prior to the meeting 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 30, 2024        Page 4                               
 

and that it looked like it had all the items that were in the packet, along with mapgeo maps. Mr. 
Mannle said the packet did not have area maps or specific maps for the lot. Ms. Harris said that was 
new information. The applicant further explained why it was late. Mr. Mannle said it was traditional 
to include everything the applicant was going to present at the meeting. He asked if the existing 
one-car garage would be eliminated. Mr. Lanzetta said the garage would be brought forward 20 
feet, which would leave four parking spots in front of the garage and some on the sides. Mr. Mannle 
said the side lot variances in the SRB zone were 10 feet. He said the applicant had eight feet in the 
front, 13 feet on the property’s right side, and at least 15 or more feet off the back side of the 
property, so he would not have to incur any variances. Mr. Lanzetta said the structure and 
architecture would be expensive and that they wouldn’t be able to use any of the existing structure 
as far as open space and would be cutting brick and putting high beams for supports. He said the 
entire layout of the house would have to be reconfigured. He said there was space on the east side 
that did nothing with the existing structure of the house for the family, which was why they needed 
more space on the west side. Mr. Mannle said the house was a brick ranch so there were no interior 
bearing walls. Mr. Lanzetta disagreed and said the bisecting hallway in the house had load bearing 
walls. Mr. Mannle asked if the current garage would be used as living space. Mr. Lanzetta said it 
would be a bedroom and that the existing door at the rear had a lintel that would allow entrance into 
the rear addition. Mr. Mannle verified that the proposed rear addition was for rear entrance and an 
office and the proposed front addition was for a garage and front entrance. Mr. Lanzetta said the 
living room would be expanded to allow space for a dining table. Mr. Mannle asked if the brick 
wall would be removed. Mr. Lanzetta said it would not because of the bay window, the front door, 
and a header that spanned the entire opening, and he further explained it. 
 
[Timestamp 45:28] Acting-Chair Margeson said renderings were included as part of the 
presentation, but the representations made for the building with the flat roof and peak roof were 
considered conditions upon which the variance might be granted, and if they changed, the applicant 
would have to return. Mr. Lanzetta said he had wanted to ascertain whether the structures would be 
permitted and that he intended to work with an architect and do the peak roof. He said he wanted 
approval to not go above the existing ridgeline. Acting-Chair Margeson said the request could be 
for the pitched or flat roof but the variance was conditioned upon everything presented. She said it 
would have been better to present an entire application to the Board.  
 
[Timestamp 48:28] Mr. Rossi said when the Board looked at front setbacks, there was usually a 
provision to look at the average setback on neighboring properties. He asked if the Board knew 
what that was and if it was consistent with the neighborhood. He said it looked like the house to the 
right of the applicant’s lot line was substantially farther set back than the proposed front building 
addition. He said the applicant was referencing a single point, which was a corner of an outbuilding 
on the left property line, so it wasn’t really apples to apples. He asked Ms. Harris what the average 
setback in the neighborhood was. Ms. Harris said she didn’t have a specific number but knew that 
the front yard averaging was not working in favor of the proposed setback. Mr. Lanzetta said it was 
a short block and the two homes to the east were at the depth that his house was in, about 38 feet, so 
the formula really didn’t do much, and he further explained it. Mr. Rossi asked Ms. Harris if her 
assessment of the front yard setback included the properties across the street from the applicant. Ms. 
Harris said it would just be on the same side of the street within 200 feet of the property. 
 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 30, 2024        Page 5                               
 

Acting-Chair Margeson opened the public hearing. 
 
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION 
 
No one spoke, and Acting-Chair Margeson closed the public hearing. 
 
DISCUSSION OF THE BOARD 
 
[Timestamp 54:02] Mr. Rossi said the variance requests were big asks and big encroachments on 
the front and back yard setbacks. He said the applicant presented a decent rationale as to why the 
rear addition had to be on the back side of the lot, but he was still concerned about the front yard 
setback because it was a significant deviation from what was already there. Mr. Mannle said he 
could not support the application, even though the lot was oddly shaped and had inherent hardship 
because the current building was 23 feet away from the back lot where the standard was 30 feet. He 
referred to McKinley Road on the Geo map that showed the two houses on either side as basically 
the same setback as the applicant’s house, and he said the house that directly abutted had an 
addition that went along the larger side of the triangular lot. He said he did not believe that relief for 
the back addition to be moved to the other side could be given since it was just an office and a 
doorway was necessary to get to that office. Referring to the proposed front addition, he said the 
applicant wanted a variance of 20 feet but was keeping the one-car garage and 20 feet was a lot for 
one car. Mr. Mannle said he did not see any reason why the garage couldn’t be moved back to have 
less of an impact on the front side of the lot. He said the applicant had options but wanted to add 
1,000 sf to a house that was already nonconforming. Mr. Rossi said usually an application where 
something was becoming more nonconforming had an offset benefit where another aspect of the 
property became less nonconforming. Acting-Chair Margeson said she initially had problems with 
the application, like why the applicant couldn’t go up and why the addition on the back couldn’t go 
on the other side of the house, but she felt that the applicant answered those issues.  
 
[Timestamp 1:00:48] Ms. Geffert read the statute, which stated that if the Board determines that it 
lacks sufficient information to make a final decision on an application and the applicant does not 
consent to an extension, the applicant can submit a new application for the same or substantially 
similar request for relief. She said if the Board followed that course of action, they would not create 
a Fisher v. Dover concern. Acting-Chair Margeson said the issue was that the Board did not have 
enough information. Ms. Geffert said if the Board determined that they lacked sufficient 
information to make a decision, they could deny without prejudice and allow the applicant to return, 
as opposed to a formal denial that would create a Fisher v. Dover situation. It was further discussed. 
 
DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
Mr. Mannle moved to deny without prejudice because it lacks sufficient information to make a final 
decision. 
 
[Timestamp 1:03:16] He said the applicant could resubmit the same application with more 
information or submit a brand new application and that Fisher v. Dover would not be a 
consideration. Acting-Chair Margeson said that was different from Section 674.33 Section 8 in that 



Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting April 30, 2024        Page 6                               
 

if the Board moved to deny without prejudice due to the need for additional information, she did not 
think it meant that the applicant could submit a new application but would need to supplement the 
existing application. Ms. Harris agreed and said the motion needed to include what information was 
lacking. It was further discussed. 
 
Amended motion: 
 
Mr. Mannle moved that the Board deny the application without prejudice for lack of information, 
including maps of the neighborhood, photos of the current structure from all angles of the lot, 
photos of the neighborhood, complete renderings of what the architecture will look like when it is 
built, and an averaging calculation of the neighborhood. Mr. Rossi seconded the motion. 
 
[Timestamp 1:06:18] There was further discussion regarding how important it is for an applicant to 
submit all relevant information in advance of the meeting so that the Board is aware of it; any 
deviations from the application would require the applicant to return before the Board; and if the 
application is denied without prejudice and the applicant submits a new application for the same or 
substantially similar request for relief, there could be minor changes when it comes back. 
 
The motion passed unanimously, 6-0. 
 
 

II.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m.     
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Joann Breault 
BOA Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 



2  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

II. OLD BUSINESS 

A. The request of Kerrin J. Parker Revocable Trust of 2012 (Owner), for 
property located at 86 Haven Road whereas relief is needed to construct an 
addition to the existing structure which requires the following: 1) Variance from 
Section 10.521 to a) allow a 7.5 foot front yard where 10 feet is required by 
front yard averaging; b) to allow a building coverage of 26% where 20% is 
allowed; and 2) Variance from Section 10.321 to allow of nonconforming 
structure or building to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without 
conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance. Said property is located on 
Assessor Map 206 Lot 27 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) 
District. (LU-23-192)  

Existing & Proposed Conditions 
 Existing  

  
Proposed  
  

Permitted / Required    

Land Use: Single 
family 
dwelling  

*Second floor 
expansion 
and front deck 
addition 

Primarily residential   

Lot area (sq. ft.): 7,889 7,889 15,000 min.  

Lot Area per Dwelling  
Unit (sq. ft.):  

7,889 7,889 15,000 min.  

Street Frontage (ft.): 86 86 100 min.  
Lot depth (ft.)  72 72 100 min.  
Front Yard  (ft.): 12 7.5 10 (per 10.516.10) min.  
Left Yard (ft.): 13 13 10 min.  
Right Yard (ft.): Garage: 1 

House: 15 
Garage: 1 
House: 15 

10 min. 

Rear Yard (ft.): 20 20 30 min.  
Height (ft.): <35 25.5 35 max.  
Building Coverage (%):  25 26 20 max.  
Open Space Coverage (%):  >40 >40 

 
40 min.  

Parking  2 2 2   
Estimated Age of Structure:  1941 Variance request(s) shown in red.  

  
 

* Relief needed to construct an addition to the already non-conforming primary structure that 
would further impact the non-conformity. 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 
• Building Permit  



3  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Neighborhood Context  

 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



4  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
October 27, 1981 – the Board granted a variance to allow a 12’ x 22’ garage with a 1’ 

Right Side yard where 10’ is the minimum required. 
April 26, 1983 – the Board granted a variance to allow a variance from Article III, 

Section 10-302 to construct a 12’ x 24’ addition with a Front Yard of 19’ where 30’ is 
required and a Rear Yard of 29’ where 30’ is required. 

March 22, 2005 – the Board granted a variance to allow a variance from Article III 
Section 10-302(A) and Article IV, Section 10-401(A)(2)(c) to allow a 14’ x 24’ one 
story addition with a) a 20’8” rear setback for the addition and a 19’8” rear setback for 
the steps from the addition where 30’ is the minimum required; and b) 25% building 
coverage where 20% is the maximum allowed. 

March 19, 2024 – The Board voted to continue the request a variance from Section 
10.521 to a) allow a 9’ front yard where 10’ is required by front yard averaging; b) to 
allow a building coverage of 29% where 20% is allowed; and 2) Variance from 
Section 10.321 to allow of nonconforming structure or building to be extended, 
reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance.  

April 16, 2024 – The Board granted the applicants request for a one-month 
postponement to the May 21, 2024 meeting to gather additional information 
requested by the Board. 

Planning Department Comments 
The applicant is requesting relief for the addition to the front of the primary structure. The 
proposed second floor conforms to minimum yard requirements and does not require relief; 
however the addition of the front porch will encroach into the front yard area and will 
increase the existing non-conforming building coverage. 
 
At the March 19, 2024 BOA meeting, the Board closed the public hearing and voted to 
postpone the application, asking the applicant to come back with more information and 
specific details on property boundaries.  
 
The applicant has submitted to the Board a stamped survey that represents a proposed 
setback of 7.7’ in the front (which has been conservatively rounded to 7.5’) and 26% 
building coverage. The request was readvertised per the BOA rules and regulations and the 
new front yard and building coverage were represented in this most recent advertisement 
and noticing. For reference, the original request was for a 9 foot front yard and 29% building 
coverage. 
 
To accept and consider the new information, the Board must vote to suspend the rules and 
accept the new information prior to any presentation or discussion with the applicant. The 
Board should then reopen the public hearing prior to taking action on the application.  

Variance Review Criteria 



5  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

(a) The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist 

between the general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific 
application of that provision to the property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 
Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict 
conformance with the Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a 
reasonable use of it. 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 

  



Derek R. Durbin, Esq.   
603.287.4764  

derek@durbinlawoffices.com  

 

Durbin Law Offices, P.L.L.C.    144 Washington Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801    www.durbinlawoffices.com 

 

 

BY:  VIEWPOINT & HAND DELIVERY 

 

       May 1, 2024 

City of Portsmouth 

Attn: Stefanie Casella, Planner 

Zoning Board of Adjustment 

1 Junkins Avenue 

Portsmouth, NH  03801 

 

RE:  Variance Application of Kerrin J. Parker, Trustee of the Kerrin J. Parker 

Revocable Trust of 2012 

 86 Haven Road, Tax Map 206, Lot 27 

 

Dear Stefanie, 

 

Please find a copy of the following submission materials in connection with the variance 

application being filed on Kerrin Parker’s behalf for property located at 86 Haven Road:  

  

1) Landowner Letter of Authorization; 

2) Narrative to Variance Application; 

3) Existing and Proposed Conditions Site Plan; 

4) Architectural Plans; 

5) GIS Map of Property; and 

6) Photographs of Property. 

 

A copy of the above application materials is being delivered to the Planning Department.  

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding the enclosed application materials, do not 

hesitate to contact me at your convenience.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

       Derek R. Durbin, Esq. 

 

 

 

 

 
   



 

LANDOWNER LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION 

 

Kerrin J. Parker, Trustee of the Kerrin J. Parker Revocable Trust, record owner of the 

property located at 86 Haven Road, Tax Map 206, Lot 27, Portsmouth, NH (the “Property”), 
hereby authorizes Durbin Law Offices, PLLC to file any zoning, planning or other municipal 

permit applications with the City of Portsmouth for said Property and to appear before its land use 

boards.  This Letter of Authorization shall be valid until expressly revoked in writing. 

 

Kerrin J. Parker Revocable Trust 

 

       January 10, 2024 

 

 

Kerrin J. Parker, Trustee 

 



CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 

 

NARRATIVE  

TO VARIANCE APPLICATION 

 

Kerrin J. Parker Revocable Trust of 2012 

Kerrin J. Parker, Trustee 

(“Applicant”) 

 

86 Haven Road 

Tax Map 206, Lot 27 

 

 

Introduction 

  

Existing Conditions 

.   

The Property is a 7,889 square foot improved parcel of land situated at the very end of Haven 

Road owned by Kerrin J. Parker, as Trustee of the Kerrin J. Parker Revocable Trust of 2012 (the 

“Property”).  The Property contains a relatively small single-family residence that Kerrin resides in 

with her two children.   It is zoned Single-Family Residence B.  The Property is abutted by single-

family homes to the north and east.  To the south and west, it is abutted by Little Harbor School and 

related City land.   

 

The single-family home on the Property was originally built in 1941.  There is a also a 

small shed and detached garage on the Property.  The existing home was originally one-story in 

height and consisted of only the front of the house facing Haven Road.  In 1983, the Zoning Board 

of Adjustment (“Board”) granted the variances necessary to construct a small two-story addition 

to the rear.  The resulting addition is not a full two-stories in height.  It is closer to 1.5 stories in 

height.  The front of the home remains one-story in height and then transitions to approximately 

1.5 stories in height in the rear.  In 2005, relief was granted to allow another small, one-story living 

room addition to the rear of the home. 

 

Proposed Conditions 

  

Second Floor Expansion 

 

The Applicant would like to create a full second floor on the home to allow for safer, more 

adequate headroom and to accommodate an additional bedroom and bathroom.  Presently, the 

Applicant shares a bathroom with her two daughters on the second floor of the home.   

 

Porch Addition 

 

 In addition to creating a full second floor over the existing footprint of the home, the 

Applicant would like to construct a farmer style porch onto the front of the home to improve its 

architectural appeal and functionality.  The new porch would connect the existing front entryway 

to the north (right) to the existing side deck and entryway to the south (left). 

 

 
 

 



 

Zoning Relief Summary 

 
The Applicant seeks the following variances from the Board: 

 

 Article 10.521 

 

a) Building Coverage – to allow 26% (+/-) building coverage where 23% (+/-) exists and 

20% is allowed; 

 

b) Front Yard Setback – allow for a 7.7’(+/-) front yard setback where 7.7’ exists and 30’ is 

required.1 
 

Section 10.321: To allow a nonconforming building or structure to be extended, 

reconstructed or enlarged without conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance.   

 

Variance Criteria 

 

Granting the variances will not be contrary to the spirit and intent of the Zoning Ordinance 

or the public interest. 

 

In the case of Chester Rod & Gun Club, Inc. v. Town of Chester, the Court noted that since 

the provisions of all ordinances represent a declaration of public interest, any variance will, in 

some measure, be contrary to the ordinance, but to be contrary to the public interest or injurious to 

public rights of others, "the variance must 'unduly, and in a marked degree' conflict with the 

ordinance such that it violates the ordinance's 'basic zoning objectives.” “Id. The Court observed 

that “[t]here are two methods of ascertaining whether granting a variance would violate an 

ordinance’s basic zoning objectives: (1) examining whether granting the variance would alter the 

essential character of the neighborhood or, in the alternative; and (2) examining whether granting 

the variance would threaten the public health, safety, or welfare.” Id. 

 

Second Floor Expansion 

 

The vertical expansion of the second floor of the home will be located outside of the 

applicable building setbacks and contained entirely over the footprint of the existing home.  The 

area of the existing home above which the expansion is proposed by itself does not violate the 

building coverage limitation in the Ordinance as the footprint is 1,044 square feet .  The second-

floor expansion has been included in the request for variance relief under Section 10.321 out of an 

abundance of caution due to the Property itself being non-conforming with respect to building 

coverage; however, this limitation does have a direct correlation to the proposed second-floor 

expansion and should not apply under the circumstances.   

 

The public interest is observed by allowing for a code-compliant, aesthetically appealing 

expansion of the second floor of the home.  It is also consistent with the spirit of the Ordinance, 

which in this case relates to total building coverage and is to protect against the overcrowding of 

land.  Aside from the new farmer’s porch, which is discussed below, there will be no expansion to 

the footprint of any existing structures on the Property. 

 

 
1 Based on the average alignment of primary structures within 200’ on the same side of Haven Drive, the required front 

yard setback is approximately 10’ pursuant to Section 10.516.10 of the Ordinance.  Exhibit A.  



 

 

Farmer’s Porch 

 

The proposed farmer’s porch does constitute an expansion to the existing footprint of the 

building, thus increasing the building coverage by just under 4%.  In addition, at least a portion of 

it will encroach into the front setback.  The porch will follow and wrap around the front façade of 

the home.  It will have a setback of 7.7’ at its closest point to the front boundary along the northern 

elevation of the Property to 9.8’ at its farthest point to the front boundary along the southern 

elevation of the Property.  The existing home, including front entryway, has a setback of 7.7’ to 

15.6’ by way of comparison. 

 

The appearance of the home will be aesthetically improved with the modifications made to 

the roofline and façade the home.  Having a wrap-around farmers-style porch that connects the 

entryway to the south with the entryway to the north will also improve the functionality of the 

home and allow for more social interaction with the neighborhood while not altering the essential 

character of the neighborhood or having any negative impact upon the public interest.  The 

proposed building coverage will be consistent with about half of the other properties along Haven 

Road. 

 

The purpose of minimum setback standards is to ensure that there is adequate light, air and 

space between abutting properties and the structures thereon.  Front setback restrictions are also 

often utilized to promote a uniform streetscape.  In this instance, based on the City GIS, the average 

alignment of principal buildings on the same side of the street (within 200’) is 10’.  The proposed 

setback is 7.7’ – 9.8’, which is consistent with surrounding structures. The spirit of the Ordinance 

will be observed, as the proposed farmer’s porch will not have any impact upon the light, air and 

space of any abutting property and will maintain a consistent streetscape on Haven Road.   
 

Substantial Justice will be done in granting the variances. 

 

To determine whether substantial justice is done, the Board must balance the equities 

between the rights of a private landowner and the public interest in deciding whether to grant or 

deny a variance request. The “only guiding rule is that any loss to the individual that is not 

outweighed by a gain to the general public is an injustice.” New Hampshire Office of State 

Planning, The Board of Adjustment in New Hampshire, A Handbook for Local Officials 

(1997); Malachy Glen Assocs., Inc. v. Town of Chichester, 155 N.H. 102 (2007). 

 

There is no conceivable gain to the public by denying the variance relief as it relates to the 

expansion of the second floor or the proposed farmer’s porch.  It would constitute a loss to the 

Applicant to deny the request for the expansion of the second floor, as it will allow for a second 

bathroom and sufficient bedroom space for the Applicant and her two daughters.  The farmer’s 

porch adds aesthetic and functional value without negatively impacting any abutting properties.  

For the foregoing reasons, it would constitute an injustice to deny the application in whole or in 

part. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Surrounding property values will not be diminished by granting the variance. 

 

It would be illogical to conclude that surrounding property values would be negatively 

affected in any way by the proposed improvements to the Property.  The proposed improvements 

will be in keeping with the character of the neighborhood and improve the Property aesthetically.  

The second-floor expansion and proposed farmer’s porch will only add value to the Property and 

hence, surrounding properties.   
 

Literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would result in an any 

unnecessary hardship. 

 

The Property has special conditions that distinguish it from surrounding properties.  It is 

uniquely situated at the end of Haven Road, which is abutted by City land that consists of open 

green space (field(s)) to the south and west.  The Property does not see a lot of foot or vehicular 

traffic.  The Property has 53% of the lot area required under SRB Zoning.  Based on the area of 

the lot (7,889 sf.) and the 20% building coverage limitation, only 1,578 sf. of the Property can be 

occupied by structure.  In addition, the Property is irregularly shaped.  It has a panhandle or 

“logger’s boot” shape.  It is 86’ in width in the front and narrows to 10’ in width at the rear lot 

line.  Once the applicable building setbacks (10’/30’) are applied to the Property, there is very little 

area available for development.  The original home on the Property was constructed in 1941, prior 

to current zoning, and did not account for the needs of a family in the 21st century.   

 

The Property is uniquely situated and burdened in comparison with surrounding properties, 

such that there is no fair and substantial relationship between the general purposes of the Ordinance 

provisions and their application to the Property.   

 

As argued above, it is undersigned counsel’s opinion that the expansion of the second floor 

should be exempt from needing variance relief under Section 10.321 and 10.521 of the Ordinance  

since it only involves a vertical expansion that does not further extend any existing non-

conformities of the Property. 

 

The proposed use is reasonable.  The existing single-family use of the Property will 

continue and is encouraged and permitted by right in the SRB zoning district.  The modifications 

to the Property will allow for a more modern, comfortable living environment that complies with 

the current building code and allows for safer, more adequate ceiling height and headroom on the 

second floor of the home.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Conclusion 

 

The Applicant has demonstrated that her application meets the five (5) criteria for granting 

each of the variances requested.  She thanks the Board for its time and consideration of her 

application and respectfully requests your approval. 

 

      Respectfully Submitted 

 

 

Dated: May 1, 2024 Kerrin J. Parker, Trustee of the Kerrin J. 

Parker Revocable Trust of 2012 

 

 

 

By: Derek R. Durbin, Esq. 

DURBIN LAW OFFICES PLLC 

144 Washington Street 

Portsmouth, NH 03801 

(603)-287-4764 

 



City of Portsmouth, NH February 22, 2024

Property Information

Property ID 0206-0027-0000
Location 86 HAVEN RD
Owner PARKER KERRIN J REVO TRUST OF 2012

MAP FOR REFERENCE ONLY
NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT

City of Portsmouth, NH makes no claims and no warranties,
expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of
the GIS data presented on this map.

Geometry updated 08/24/2023
Data updated 3/9/2022

Print map scale is approximate.
Critical layout or measurement
activities should not be done using
this resource.

1" = 40.1952024185815 ft



Map Theme Legends

Wetlands

City of Portsmouth





















City of Portsmouth, NH February 22, 2024

Property Information

Property ID 0206-0027-0000
Location 86 HAVEN RD
Owner PARKER KERRIN J REVO TRUST OF 2012

MAP FOR REFERENCE ONLY
NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT

City of Portsmouth, NH makes no claims and no warranties,
expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of
the GIS data presented on this map.

Geometry updated 08/24/2023
Data updated 3/9/2022

Print map scale is approximate.
Critical layout or measurement
activities should not be done using
this resource.

1" = 160.78150475810295 ft



 











6  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

II. OLD BUSINESS 

B. The request of Atlas Commons LLC (Owner), for property located at 581 
Lafayette Road whereas relief is needed for after-the-fact installation of an 
awning sign which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.1251.20 
to allow a 32 square foot awning sign whereas 20 square feet is allowed. Said 
property is located on Assessor Map 229 Lot 8B and lies within the Gateway 
Corridor (G1) District. (LU-24-1)   

Existing & Proposed Conditions 
 Existing  

  
Proposed  
  

Permitted / 
Required  

  

Land Use: Commercial  Commercial Mixed-Use 
Corridor 

  

Awning Sign Area (sq. ft.): 32 32 20 max 
Northern facing façade building 
frontage(ft.):  

90 90   

Western facing façade building 
frontage (ft.): 

125 125   

Northern facing façade sign area 
(sq. ft.)  

75 75 135 max.  

Western facing façade sign area 
(sq. ft.): 

58.2 58.2 187.5 max.  

Estimated Age of Structure:  1972 Variance request(s) shown in red. 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 
• Sign Permit  



7  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Neighborhood Context  

 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



8  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
September 22, 2015 - The Board approved the following to allow a restaurant with 

associated parking:  
1. A Special Exception under Section 10.440, Use #9.52 to allow a restaurant 
with 492 seats where 250 to 500 seats are allowed by Special Exception.  
2. A Variance from 10.593.10 to allow a restaurant to be located 92.1’ from a 
residential district where 200’ is required.  
3. A Variance from 10.531 to allow 16.5% open space where 11% exists and 
20% is required.  
4. A Variance from Section 10.1112.50 to allow 154 off-street parking spaces 
where 184 exist and 132 are the maximum allowed.  
5. A Variance from Section 10.1113.20 to allow parking in the front yard or 
between a building and a street for 34 spaces where 38 exist and 0 spaces are 
permitted.  
6. A Variance from 10.1113.10 to allow 28 existing and 30 proposed off-street  
parking spaces to be partially located on a lot separate from that of the 
principal use.  
7. A Variance from Section 10.1114.21 to allow 10 off-street parking spaces to 
be 17.5’ in length where 19’ is required.  
8. A Variance from 10.1124.20 to allow off-street loading or maneuvering 
areas to be 87.7’ from an adjoining Residential or Mixed Residential District 
where 100’ is required. 

May 18, 2021 - The Board granted the request to add an indoor golf simulators in an 
existing restaurant which required the following: 1) A Special Exception from Section 
10.440 Use #4.30 to allow an indoor recreation use where the use is permitted by 
Special Exception. 

Planning Department Comments 
The applicant is requesting relief to appropriately permit an awning sign that has already 
been installed at the front entrance on the western facing facade. 
 
The property is located in Sign District 5 (Section 10.232) which allows a maximum awning 
sign area of 20 square feet (Section 10.1251.20). The awning sign in need of relief is 32 
square feet. 
 
Maximum aggregate sign area allowed in Sign district 5 is 1.5 square feet per linear foot of 
building frontage (Section 10.1251). The western façade measures 125 feet, which gives the 
applicant a maximum of 187.5 square feet of aggregate sign area on that side of the 
building. The addition of the awning sign brings the total aggregate sign area on the western 
facing façade to 58.2 square feet. 

Variance Review Criteria 



9  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

(a) The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist 

between the general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific 
application of that provision to the property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 
Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict 
conformance with the Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a 
reasonable use of it. 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 

  



Written Reason for Equitable Labor Variance. 

581 Lafayette RD Portsmouth NH 

TOUR GOLF & GRILL 

 

The reason we are asking for a Variance is, The owner of Tour was unaware, that the previously hired 
Sign Company was not following the legislature and rules, by checking the Town laws and following 
procedure. (for sizing of lettering on awning, nor did they apparently pull a permit.) The prior Sign 
Company told him they were following the correct steps.   

        We are here now asking that due to the circumstances of the Hardship of replacing such an 
Awning would be unnecessary cost of thousands of dollars at this time.  Cost wise for our client in 
this economy we ask that this variance allowed to keep the size as was installed.  10.233.25 

        The neighbors will not be harmed nor will property values or assets be diminished from this 
black and white, classic, non illuminated lettering. Also it might actual help as a wayfinding point 
for travelers passing through or for direction purposes in an already busy intersection. 
10.233.24/.21 

    The Awning size is just a minor bit larger than the allotted size and we hope that due to the 
distance of our neighbors, and viewing capacity. That you allow us this variance and to keep the 
awning as is. We will not enlarge or change what is there, and will observe all aspects of the allowed 
variance.10.233.22 

  This will help our client to continue his endeavors, focused on creating amazing restaurants and 
event places where we can gather and grow our community.10.233.23  

 

      Tour Golf is now aware and remedied its future with Signage, by in trusting his Signage creation 
and development with us at Signs East LLC. As you can ask your constituents, we insist on directly 
following and filing correct paperwork, and permits. Focus on prompt replies and presentation of 
documents.  As well as we maintain our reputation with high end quality products, while 
installation upon legitimate legal Signage per town allowances. 

 

 Thank you for your time,  

 Tor Larson 

 Signs East LLC. 

SignsEast.com 











10  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

II. OLD BUSINESS 

C. REQUEST TO WITHDRAW The request of Giri Portsmouth 505 Inc. 
(Owner), for property located at 505 US Route 1 Bypass whereas relief is 
needed to demolish the existing structure and construct a new hotel with a 
drive thru restaurant which requires the following: 1) Special Exception from 
10.440 Use #10.40 hotel where it is permitted by Special Exception; 2) 
Variance from Section 10.835.32 to allow 5 feet between the lot line and drive-
thru and bypass lanes where 30 feet is required for each; 3) Variance from 
Section 10.835.31 to allow 18 feet between the menu and speaker board and 
the front lot line where 50 feet is required; 4) Variance from Section10.5B22.20 
to allow up to 60 feet in building height within 50 feet of the street right-of-way 
line whereas up to 45 feet is permitted; 5) Variance from Section 10.5B34.70 
to allow up to 60 feet in building height whereas 50 feet is permitted; 6) 
Variance from Section 10.5B34.60 to allow a 30 foot setback for a small 
commercial building whereas a maximum of 20 feet is permitted; 7) Variance 
from Section 10.5B33.20 to allow less than 75 percent front lot line buildout 
whereas a minimum of 75 percent is required for commercial buildings. Said 
property is located on Assessor Map 234 Lot 5 and lies within the Gateway 
Neighborhood Corridor (G1) District. (LU-24-44) REQUEST TO WITHDRAW 

Planning Department Comments 
The applicant is requesting to withdraw the request that was noticed and advertised. 

  





11  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

A. The request of Ryan Leibundgut (Owner), for property located at 137 Walker 
Bungalow Road whereas relief is needed to demolish the front deck and 
construct a new deck on the front of the existing home which requires the 
following: 1) Variance from Section 10.521 to allow a 20  foot front yard where 
30 feet is required; 2) Variance from Section 10.321 to allow of nonconforming 
structure or building to be extended, reconstructed or enlarged without 
conforming to the requirements of the Ordinance. Said property is located on 
Assessor Map 202 Lot 4 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) (LU-24-
10) 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 
 Existing  

  
Proposed  
  

Permitted 
/ 
Required  

  

Land Use: Single family 
dwelling  

*Demolish the 
existing front deck 
and construct a new 
deck 

Primarily 
residential 

  

Lot area (sq. ft.): 20,037.6 20,037.6 15,000 min.  

Lot Area per Dwelling  
Unit (sq. ft.):  

20,037.6 20,037.6 15,000 min.  

Street Frontage (ft.): 100 100 100 min.  
Lot depth (ft.)  200 200 100 min.  
Front Yard  (ft.): 20 20 30 min.  
Left Yard (ft.): 6 (garage) 

>20 (existing porch) 
6 (garage) 
>20 (proposed porch) 

10 min.  

Right Yard (ft.): 21 21 10 min. 
Rear Yard (ft.): 125 125 30 min.  
Height (ft.): <35 <35 35 max.  
Building Coverage (%):  10.4 11.2 20 max.  
Open Space Coverage 
(%):  

>40 >40 40 min.  

Parking  2 2 2   
Estimated Age of 
Structure:  

1957 Variance request(s) shown in red.  
  

 

*Relief needed to construct an addition to the already non-conforming primary structure that 
would further impact the non-conformity. 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 
• Wetland Conditional Use Permit (Conservation Commission and Planning Board) 
• Building Permit  



12  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Neighborhood Context  

 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



13  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
February 15, 1994 – The Board granted the variance from Article III, Section 1—302 to 

allow the construction of a 3’ x 19’ handicapped ramp from front door to driveway with 
a 17’ front yard where a 30’ front yard is required. 

Planning Department Comments 
The applicant is requesting relief for demolition of the existing front porch and construction 
of a new front porch that will span the length of the front of the primary structure. The 
existing deck is 105 square feet and the new deck will be 273 square feet.  
 
There is a wetland in the rear of the property and the proposed work is located within the 
100-foot wetland buffer area. The applicant will be required to obtain a wetland conditional 
use permit which requires review by the Conservation Commission and approval by the 
Planning Board. 

Variance Review Criteria 
This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

(a) The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist 

between the general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific 
application of that provision to the property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 
Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict 
conformance with the Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a 
reasonable use of it. 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 

  



137 Walker Bungalow Rd 

We are proposing an enhancement to our residence by extending the current porch along the 
entire frontage of the house. This project is an expansion of the existing structure (7’x 16’) to 
span a total of 44 feet across the front of the house, extending 6.5 feet from the house.


Additionally, the project includes the extension of a dormer above the porch to create a 
covered area. This feature is designed to complement the extended porch, offering shelter and 
enhancing the facade of the house. The integration of the dormer with the porch extension 
ensures a cohesive appearance and functionality- tying in the dormer ridge with the existing 
ridge from the past addition in the rear of the house to make the house look more complete 
and a continuation of the existing framing. The space left underneath the dormer on the interior 
of the house can be used as a small storage area but not a living space, the area is too small.


Our aim with this project is to enrich the usability and appearance of the home while respecting 
its original architecture and the surrounding neighborhood. The extension is carefully designed 
to match the existing structure and add a more welcoming feel to the home, without 
completely changing the original framing and layout of the current house.


Addressing the analysis criteria the variance meets;


Public interest: The variance is not contrary to the public interest, it not only adds a dimension 
of impressiveness to the house but it doesn’t encroach any neighboring property lines- nor 
does it add any height to the total building structure/ obstruct neighboring views. While the 
variance is for road setback relief, there is still the same amount of distance between the road 
and the current porch attached to the home. 


The Spirit of the Ordinance: respecting the need to not have homeowners encroach the road 
with building is important. The variance were seeking does not encroach the road anymore 
than the current porch does- we are only looking to extend the foundation of the porch across 
the rest of the house. 


Substantial Justice will be done: In order to make sure we comply with all of the bounds we’re 
seeking we will have a site manager at all times who’s proficient in the setback code making 
sure we follow the exact draft of how we’ve drawn up the addition. 


The value of the surrounding properties will not be diminished: The goal of the addition as part 
of a series of other renovations is to make the home look more up to date in a subtle, 
respectful way. We do not encroach the neighbors property with this addition (Porch), nor will it 
be disrupting their land, view, or ecosystems. I believe the final product of the home will be a 
positive addition to the surrounding properties 


Enforcement of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship: The addition to the home 
that was added ~ 10 years ago looks incomplete viewed from the front of the house. The 
current porch wasn’t built properly and I’m looking to rebuild using the original idea of a porch 
but in a way to make the house look complete and in a way that complements the overall 
home. 








100’

6’ 21’

30’

Wet Land

82’

20’









14  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

III. NEW BUSINESS 
B. The request of John C. Wallin and Jeanine M. Girgenti (Owners), for 

property located at 5 Cleveland Drive to amend the Variances granted on July 
18, 2023 to install a 6 foot fence along the primary and secondary front of the 
property to include the following: 1) Variance from Section 10.515.13 to allow a 
6 foot fence to be installed on top of a 3.5 foot tall  retaining wall to create a 
total structure height of 9.5 feet where 4 feet is allowed. Said property is 
located on Assessor Map 247 Lot 74 and lies within the Single Residence B 
(SRB) District. (LU-23-92) 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 
 Existing  

  
Proposed  
  

Permitted / Required    

Land Use: Single-
family  

*Installation of 6 
foot fence on top of 
a 3.5 foot wall 

Primarily residential   

Lot area (sq. ft.): 13,095 13,095 15,000 min.  

Lot Area per Dwelling  
Unit (sq. ft.):  

13,095 13,095 15,000 min.  

Lot depth (ft.): 105 105 100 min.  
Street Frontage (ft.)  >200 >200 100 min.  
Primary Front Yard 
(Cleveland Dr) (ft.): 

20 20 30 min.  

Left Yard (ft.): 15 15 10 min.  
Secondary Front Yard 
(Taft Rd) (ft.): 

30 
(Primary 
Structure) 

12 (Fence) 
30 (Primary 
Structure) 

30 min.  

Height (ft.): <35 <35 35 max.  
Building Coverage (%):  18 18 20 max.  
Open Space Coverage 
(%):  

>30 >30 30 min.  

Parking  2 2 2   
Estimated Age of 
Structure:  

1962 Variance request(s) shown in red.  
  

 

*Installation of a fence structure higher than 4 feet in the front yard area requires relief from 
Section 10.515.13. 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 
• Building Permit 

  



15  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Neighborhood Context  

 
 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



16  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
February 20, 2001 – The Board denied the application for a Variance from Article II, 

Section 10-206(12) and Article XII, Section 10-1201(A)(3)(a)(3&4) to allow 200+ s.f. 
in an existing single family dwelling to be used for a nail salon with the existing 
driveway being provided for parking, having vehicles park one behind another and 
back out onto the street.  

July 18, 2023 – The Board granted the request to install a 6-foot fence along the 
primary and secondary front of the property which required a Variance from Section 
10.515.13 to allow a 6-foot fence where 4 feet is allowed.  

Planning Department Comments 
The applicant is requesting to amend the previously granted variance for a 6-foot fence in 
the secondary front yard of the property. The original variance request was heard and 
granted at the July 18, 2023 BOA meeting where it was presented that the fence would 
serve the purpose of enclosing the inground pool. During pool construction a retaining wall 
was added to the scope of work. The inspection department put a hold on work until the 
proper building code requirements could be met for the retaining wall and notified planning 
staff of the change. The addition of the 3.5 foot retaining wall underneath the 6-foot fence 
creates a total height of 9.5 feet in a front yard setback area. 
 
The new scope of work is both different and higher than what was originally approved. 
Height is measured from the lowest reference point, either original grade or finished grade to 
the highest reference point. Please see relevant definition from the Zoning Ordinance below. 

Structure (including roof structure)  
Any production or piece of work, artificially built up or composed of parts and 
joined together in some definite manner. Structures include, but are not limited 
to, buildings, fences over 4 feet in height, signs, and swimming pools. (See 
also: temporary structure.)  

 
Structure height  

See building height. 
 

Building height  
The greatest vertical measurement between the lower and upper reference 
points as defined below. This measurement shall be the building height for the 
purposes of the Ordinance.  

(a) For buildings located outside the urban districts, the lower reference 
point shall be the average existing grade or average finished grade, 
whichever is lower, measured along the perimeter of the entire 
building. For buildings located inside the urban districts the lower 
perimeter of the reference point shall be established from the 
average existing grade or average finished grade, whichever is 

https://files.cityofportsmouth.com/files/planning/ZoningOrd-230807.pdf


17  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

lower, along street-facing façade of all lot lines adjoining a public 
place. In the case of a corner lot, through lot or waterfront lot the 
provisions of Section 5A.21.21 shall apply. The vertical distance 
between the lower and upper reference points shall not exceed the 
maximum number of stories or building height. … 

 
Average existing grade  
For all buildings located outside the urban districts, the average existing grade shall 
be the average ground levels adjoining the building at all exterior walls measured 
every five feet around the perimeter of the building. For all buildings located inside 
the urban districts, the average existing grade shall be the average existing ground 
level measured every five feet along the street-facing façade of all lot lines adjoining 
a public place. (See also: building height.)  
 
Average finished grade  
For all buildings located outside the urban districts the average finished grade shall 
be the average ground levels adjoining the building at all exterior walls measured 
every five feet around the perimeter of the building. For all buildings located inside 
the urban districts, the average finished grade shall be the average finished ground 
level measured every five feet along street-facing façade of all lot lines adjoining a 
public place. (See also: building height.). 

Variance Review Criteria 
This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

(a) The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist 

between the general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific 
application of that provision to the property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 
Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict 
conformance with the Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a 
reasonable use of it. 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance.  



April 15, 2024 
 
Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Phyllis Eldridge, Chair 
City of Portsmouth 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 

 
Re:  5 Cleveland Drive Pool Fence  

Amended Variance Request (Building Permit Application BLDG-22-309)  
(Land Use Application LU-23-92) 

 
Dear Members of the Zoning Board of Adjustment,  
 
On July 18, 2023, the Zoning Board of Adjustment granted us a variance from Section 10.515.13 to allow 
a 6-foot fence to be installed along the primary and secondary front of our property where a 4-foot 
fence is allowed (“July 2023 Variance”).  We initially requested the Variance because our lot is uniquely 
situated at the intersection of Taft Road and Cleveland Drive and has a resulting street frontage which 
accounts for more than three-quarters of our total property line.  Our home is situated facing Cleveland 
Drive, with the rear of our house (our “backyard”) facing the front yards of our neighbors on Taft Road.  
The Variance allowed us to install the 6-foot fence along the street of our backyard, providing privacy 
and security for an inground pool. 
 
After receiving the Variance, we installed the inground pool and ground level patio in our backyard.  
Brentwood Fence was scheduled to install the 6-foot fence along our property line and Taft Road, in 
accordance with the Variance.  However, in November of 2023, we received notice from Planner 
Stefanie Casella that we needed to request an amended variance because the retaining wall, 
constructed with the patio portion of the project, was not consistent with the Variance granted by this 
Board.  Ms. Casella instructed us that we could not install the fence unless we took down the retaining 
wall or requested an amended variance.   
 
As shown in the pictures of our property along Taft Road (part of the July 2023 Variance and included 
again here), our backyard slopes downward toward the street.  When construction began on the 
inground pool in August of 2023, Northern Pool and Spa informed us that they needed to dig away soil 
from this natural slope because the excavator and dump trunk were slipping down the slope when 
entering the backyard to dig the hole for the inground pool.  As such, the slope was dug away to create a 
road for the trucks to enter the backyard. 
 
After the hole was dug and the pool was installed, Landscapes by Aurelindo began installing the patio 
around the pool.  The original plan, as noted in the July Variance, was to install a natural rock wall with 
the 6-foot privacy fence at the height of the inground pool (see sample photo submitted with initial 
variance application and included again here).  However, Landscapes by Aurelindo said that a natural 
rock wall would not be strong enough for the patio project and recommended an Allan Block wall be 
installed instead.  We took this advice and the Allan Block wall was installed instead of the natural rock 
wall, but in the same approximate location. 
 
We met with Ms. Casella in November of 2023 and explained the above, and that our plan was to put 
back the soil removed by the pool company to get the trucks into the backyard.  After this meeting, we 



decided to wait until spring to request the amended variance because Ms. Casella stated that the final 
height of the retaining hall may decide the need for an amended variance. 
 
This spring, we returned soil to the front of the wall, but the weather conditions have made it difficult to 
ascertain the final height of the wall above ground.  The final height of the wall will be 38 inches but 
currently measures 38-40 inches due to the heavy rainfall moving the soil.  We contacted Ms. Casella 
with the final height of the wall after returning the soil, but she informed us that we needed to file an 
amended variance. 
 
Please note that in June of 2023, we requested a variance to install a 6-foot fence at the top of our 
backyard, not at street level.  This is similar to the location that the previous owner had a chain link 
fence (see attached Google Map photo).  It was never our intention to install a 6-foot fence at the 
bottom of the slope of our backyard as it would not have provided any security or privacy for the 
inground pool which was installed at the height of the yard that aligns with the house and the previously 
installed deck attached to the house. 
 
By way of this Amended Request for a Variance, we are requesting to finish the project and install a 6-
foot fence instead of a 4-foot fence along our property line and Taft Road to provide privacy, safety and 
a more aesthetic yard for our neighbors and pedestrians to enjoy.  If approved, the 6-foot fence will be 
located at the top of our backyard, behind and slightly above/at the level of the 38-inch retaining wall.  
We reiterate the following from our initial Variance: 
 
This fence would run along the Taft Road side of our property, coming as close as 12-feet from the edge 
of the road, measured 24 feet to the center of Taft Road (see diagram, attached with addition of a 
dotted line to show the retaining wall). Based on the natural curve of Taft Road, this is the closest the 
fence would be to the road with other parts of the fence being 20 feet or further from Taft Road.  The 
fence will join with the side of the existing house, to provide a seamless, aesthetic, secure barrier 
between pedestrians and the pool, consistent with the requirements and intent of the building code.  
 
Because our property sits lower than our neighbors on the Taft Road side of our property, a four-foot 
fence would not provide a decent amount of coverage.  
 
We have spoken with the abutters, and they do not object to a 6-foot privacy fence consistent with the 
many other improvements we have made to our property since purchasing it in 2015.  
 
This request respects the five principles variance enforcement as follows:  
 

1. Section 10.233.20:10.233.21 The variance will not be contrary to the public interest.  
 
As the map shows, the proposed fence would not limit light or circulating air to the abutters on 5 
Cleveland Drive as their houses are set back considerably from our property line and one of them is set 
substantially higher than the proposed fence line. The fence and attendant landscaping would 
additionally provide them a more attractive view than a lower fence which would provide unobstructed 
views of the pool, equipment and personal effects.  
 
Elwyn Park is a residential neighborhood without sidewalks, and erecting a higher fence will additionally 
provide privacy and safety for those walkers and joggers who come into the yards to avoid vehicle 
traffic. 



 
Many other homes within the Elwyn Park neighborhood already have six-foot or higher fences which are 
much closer to the roads, and this fence will not be “overly tall” or obstruct views other than those 
intended to provide privacy for our neighbors. 
 

2. 10.233.22 The spirit of the Ordinance will be observed.  
 
The spirit of the Ordinance, to prevent unsightly, tall, fences which obstruct or interfere with abutting 
properties, full access to air and light will be respected. The uniqueness of the plot having no backyard, 
as well as having abutting homes built at a higher level than our property, renders a four-foot fence 
insufficient to meet the substantial needs of privacy and security offered by a six-foot fence. The intent 
is to provide similar privacy that an orthodox plot would benefit from and improve the lives of neighbors 
and pedestrians by providing sufficient separation between the pool and personal effects at 5 Cleveland 
and our neighbors full use and enjoyment of their properties. At the same time, the additional height of 
the fence offers no impairment to abutters rights. 
 

3. 10.233.23 Substantial justice will be done.  
 
This request is substantiated by the unorthodox nature of the lot design and situation of the building on 
the property at time of construction, and not by the special need of the owner or disagreement with the 
ordinance.  
 

4. 10.233.24 The values of surrounding properties will not be diminished.  
 
The values of the surrounding properties will be improved by looking at an aesthetic fence consistent 
with the character of the neighborhood rather than a neighbor’s personal effects that would typically be 
in a backyard. Likewise, they will enjoy increased security and privacy with a higher fence providing 
adequate separation between our proposed improvement and their front-facing windows and 
doors.  All mechanicals for the pool will be at a height which is sufficiently below the proposed six-foot 
fence, hiding them from view.    
 

5. 10.233.25 Literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would result in an 
unnecessary hardship.  

 
The literal enforcement of the ordinance would not provide the privacy and security offered by a six-
foot fence along Taft Road.  It would effectively render this unorthodox lot without the privacy and 
utility of a traditional backyard.  The privacy and safety of a six-foot fence is desirable to both the 
property owner and abutters. Because of the orientation of the home on the lot, and the spacing 
between the one directly abutting neighbor, there is no other way to create a backyard with a six-foot 
fence that would respect the setback.  
 
We appreciate your time in consideration of this request.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
John Wallin & Jeanine Girgenti 
5 Cleveland Drive 
Portsmouth, NH  



Pictures of our property along Taft Road (included in the July 2023 Variance)

 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



This is an image from Google Maps of the chain link fence at approximately the same height respective 
to the road that existed when we purchased the home in 2015.  In addition, this image shows the 
natural slope of the yard downward toward the street. This soil was removed to facilitate construction 
of the pool and replaced after the construction of the retaining wall.  The proposed fence is further from 
Taft Road than the pre-existing fence and sits at the same height respective to the road. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



This is the sample image from the July 2023 Variance of proposed fencing with the natural rock wall.  
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



These are sample images of the current plan to install the fence behind the Allan Block wall with plants 
to be installed in front of the fence (thought these photos are not exact, they were selected to show the 
fence behind/above the retaining wall and the intending landscaping). 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



These are three images of the currently constructed/installed retaining wall, which is approximately 38 
inches – 40 inches above soil.  The frequent and intense weather condi�ons, including rainfall and recent 
snow, have caused the final calcula�on of the retaining wall above ground to fluctuate.  But the final 
result is planned to be 38 inches of retaining wall above ground with plan�ngs in front of the fence and 
the wall. 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Sketch of site plan with doted line added to show loca�on of fence in rela�on to retaining wall. 

 







 



CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 
Planning Department

1 Junkins Avenue
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

03801 
(603) 610-7216 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
July 25, 2023

John C. Wallen and Jeanine M. Girgenti
5 Cleveland Drive
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801

RE: Board of Adjustment request for property located at 5 Cleveland Drive (LU-23-92)

Dear Property Owners:

The Zoning Board of Adjustment, at its regularly scheduled meeting of Tuesday, July 18, 2023, considered your
application for installing a 6 foot fence along the primary and secondary front of the property which requires a Variance
from Section 10.515.13 to allow a 6 foot fence where 4 feet is allowed.  Said property is shown on Assessor Map 247
Lot 74 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District.  As a result of said consideration, the Board voted to to
approve the request as presented and advertised.

The Board's decision may be appealed up to thirty (30) days after the vote.  Any action taken by the applicant pursuant
to the Board's decision during this appeal period shall be at the applicant's risk. Please contact the Planning Department
for more details about the appeals process.

Approvals may also be required from other City Commissions or Boards.  Once all required approvals have been
received, applicant is responsible for applying for and securing a building permit from the Inspection Department prior to
starting any project work.

This approval shall expire unless a building permit is issued within a period of two (2) years from the date granted unless
an extension is granted in accordance with Section 10.236 of the Zoning Ordinance.

The Findings of Fact associated with this decision are available: attached here or as an attachment in the Viewpoint
project record associated with this application and on the Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting website: 

https://www.cityofportsmouth.com/planportsmouth/zoning-board-adjustment/zoning-board-adjustment-archived-
meetings-and-material

The minutes and audio recording of this meeting are available by contacting the Planning Department.

Very truly yours,

David Rheaume, Acting Chair of the Zoning Board of Adjustment

cc: Shanti Wolph, Chief Building Inspector

Rosann Maurice-Lentz, City Assessor

https://www.cityofportsmouth.com/planportsmouth/zoning-board-adjustment/zoning-board-adjustment-archived-meetings-and-material


18  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

C. The request of Edmund R. St. Pierre (Owner), for property located at 15 
Mariette Drive whereas relief is needed to create a second driveway in front 
of the existing garage which requires the following: 1) Variance from Section 
10.1114.31 to allow two driveways on a single lot where only one is allowed 
per section 3.3.2.3 of the Site Review Regulations. Said property is located on 
Assessor Map 292 Lot 167 and lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) 
District. (LU-24-57 ) 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 
 Existing  

  
Proposed  
  

Permitted / 
Required  

  

Land Use: Single 
family 
dwelling  

*Construct a 
second driveway 
to detached 
garage 

Primarily 
residential 

  

Lot area (sq. ft.): 17,424 17,424 15,000 min.  

Street Frontage (ft.): 147 147 100 min.  
Open Space Coverage (%):  >40 >40 40 min.  
Parking  2 2 2   
Estimated Age of Structure:  1956 Variance request(s) shown in red.  

  
 

*Section 10.1114.31 of the Zoning Ordinance refers to the Site Review regulations where 
driveways are limited to one per lot.  

Other Permits/Approvals Required 
• Driveway Permit  



19  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Neighborhood Context  

 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



20  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
No previous history found. 

Planning Department Comments 
The applicant is requesting relief to construct a second driveway. The second driveway will 
be used to access a detached garage which sits in an area of land that was previously a 
paper street. 
 
Please see Zoning Ordinance Section 10.1114.30 below. 

10.1114.30 Vehicular Circulation  
10.1114.31 Access to and egress from all parking areas shall be only via 
driveways which meet the standards for “General Accessway and Driveway 
Design” in the Site Plan Review Regulations 

The applicant had originally prepared two driveway designs for staff to review. In consulting 
with Eric Eby, city traffic engineer, Plan A was the preferred driveway orientation and is the 
proposal that is currently before the Board. See message for Eric Eby below. 
 

Plan A, with the driveway coming out directly into the intersection, would be the better 
of the two. While not desirable to have vehicles backing into an intersection, these 
are low volume streets and this condition already exists at other intersections in the 
neighborhood. There is a catch basin there that he will have to account for when 
constructing a driveway. 

Variance Review Criteria 
This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

(a) The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist 

between the general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific 
application of that provision to the property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 
Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict 
conformance with the Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a 
reasonable use of it. 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 

https://files.cityofportsmouth.com/files/planning/ZoningOrd-230807.pdf


21  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance.  



Portsmouth ZBA 

1 Junkins Ave.

Portsmouth NH 03801

Re: Zoning relief for driveway 15 Mariette Dr.

Good Day,

I have recently moved to Portsmouth from Hampton NH. In Hampton, I was able to serve my 

community as a member of the Zoning Board for over 12 years. I now live in a vibrant neighborhood 

(Maple Haven) and enjoy the atmosphere. I enjoy your City and appreciate what you (ZBA) do for the 

community.

I recently was granted a building permit to expand the current garage structure on my property 

(see Exhibit "E"). I plan to expand the footprint and convert one stall to a workshop. The 

current garage structure was permitted in October of 1983. The only way to access this garage 

is to cross the grass. This is not an ideal situation.

I am asking for Zoning relief to put a driveway on my extra parcel. Specifically, I am asking for 

an exception to Article 3.9 of "Driveway Rules and Procedures" (DPW) where NO driveways can 

be granted within 30 feet of an intersection and 10.114.31 (Site Regulations) where only one 

driveway is allowed per lot. There is no way to access this garage from the current house lot. 

Further, Parcel A and Parcel B only have 71 feet of frontage. Since Parcel A was designated for 

the "Mariette Drive Extension" the 50 feet of frontage directly abuts the intersection. Parcel B 

was designated for sidewalks and only contains 20 feet of frontage. There is not enough 

frontage to site the driveway 30 feet from the intersection. Note that every abutter to my 

property on Mariette Drive has a driveway that is either in the intersection (#13), or within 30 

feet of the intersection (#10, #17). Also, house #17 was allowed an extra driveway on what was 

once part of the "Mariette Drive Extension".

The 2-car garage stall exists 35 feet from the road. I feel that this is a reasonable request as a 

"hardship" exists. Further, the technicality is that this accessory lot (Parcel A) was involuntarily 

merged with the house lot when it was conveyed separately to my predecessor in title (see 

Exhibit "C"). By Ordinance each lot is allowed a separate driveway. The "spirit" of the ordinance 

is observed. That is all that I am asking. There is no further relief needed on this project. Thank 

You for your consideration of this matter.

15 Mariette Drive



Five Criteria needed for granting variance request:

1) The variance will not be contrary to the public interest:

It would be hard to deem a 12' driveway on a parcel designed for a 50' public street as 

contrary to the public interest.

2) The spirit of the ordinance will be observed:

This is a unique parcel which was deemed to be for a public road. The ordinance allows 

for one driveway to each lot. The spirit of the ordinance is observed.

3) Substantial justice will be done:

I will be able to access my updated garage/workshop without driving on the grass. The 

structure on this parcel was built early 1980's.

4) The value of surrounding properties will NOT be diminished:

I have already invested in improvements to the property. There will be substantial 

improvements to the current site in the coming months. NO diminished values will occur 

from this proposal.

5) Literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance will result in an unnecessary 

hardship:

The burden to the applicant is of much greater weight than any effect on the public. It is 

reasonable to request paved access to this building. I can see no benefit to the public in 

denying this request. I have offered "off-site" improvements to improve the safety at 

the site.

Special conditions of the property: "Unnecessary Hardship"

Owing to special conditions of the property: 1) separate parcel that was involuntarily merged, 

it was designed for a public road 2) a garage structure exists on parcel 35' from the road 3) the 

ordinance allows for 1 driveway to each "lot". I find that NO fair and substantial relationship 

exists between the purposes of the ordinance with respect to its' application to this property. I 

feel the proposed use is a reasonable one (garage/workshop). Further, the property next door 

has a separate driveway on the other piece of Mariette Drive Extension.

Owing to special conditions on the property, the property cannot be used in strict conformance 

with the Ordinance. The current 2 stall garage cannot be accessed by using the existing 

driveway. It is unreasonable to have to drive over grass to access a garage that has existed for 

over forty years. The use (garage/workshop) is permitted under the Ordinance.



A"



i xu-i^u. i j ’, iviwi.\nn, O- I I V IN/AIM
1 ■ I" 'I '«*<!; I ITF II I ■ II- r-i;.S»l^. ■! ... '•< ■■I' ’ ■

registered land SURVEYORS
75 HAMMOND STREET - FLOOR 2 

WORCESTER, MA 01610-1723 

PHONE: 508-752-8685

FAX: 508-752-8895 

RMT0HSTGROUP.NET

A Division ol H. S. & T. Group. Inc.

iivorCU I |UI\I c

NAME EDMUND R. ST. PIERRE t

LOCATION 15 MARIETTE DRIVE_________________________

PORTSMOUTH. Nl-I___________________________

SCALE I'1 ~ 30 1 DATE 09/20/21 ______

DETO DOOK/PACE 2950/1 09 

i’IZH BPDK/PLAH ASSESSORS 
we cr/rnrr that the ou-lowc(S) wlf. hot wnuu thv 

SPECW.-njNH> HAZARD MCA. SEE rEMA MV; 

270F Pro0}/29Z2021

ROOD IVJViRO ZOHE WS MSI DHEm’IKO SCALE 

IS HOT NECESSARILY ACCURATL'. UNTIL .HlWilWC PLANS ARC 

»$SU£O or FEMA WIO/OR A VWWAL <X»AflOL SVHVEY » 

PEHrORMED, PflCWf ELCVAHOND W»»OI DE imjWIliro.

Plain
CERTIFY TO: 

ALIGN CREDIT UNION 

& 

CATIC

* A *

NOTE:

PARCEL #2 DRAWN ACCORDING TO 

ASSESSORS MAPS.

REGISTRY ROCKINGHAM
BASED UPOII DOCUMElrfATUWI MGVWE0, AEOUflCO MEASURE" 

MCMTS WERE MMIE OF THE FROIHAGE AW) 8UtUMI«i(M 5H0WI 
ON THIS MM®: INSP£Cn.W Pt/W. IM qvr JUOGEMEM AU 

visible ewemchts; are shoth aho wie ahc no wutioiis 
or W RWURWUM ftiOWOlHG CTMCrwa TO PftOPERTr 
u’ftS (UHUE3S DTHUMSC HJTEO W OHAWlHG IWW).

Nofe NOT OEFINEO AftE AfiOvCORoytCJ POOLS, 0WVEWAYJ, 
OR Wdfes WTH HGI IWifttWH*. THE b A UOIrGACC 

UISPECTOII Pl>H. HOT M WSTRUMEHT SWMX DO HOT USE TO 
StECT ItHCES/OIHCR BOVNGARY STRUCTURE'!, OR TO PtA‘a 
SHRUBS. UKATOH Of STRUCTUKW) WWW HttEO*> <»,^MER
W COMPLDHCE WITH LOCAL ZOMHG FOR PR0PER1YUNC 

REOUREWEins, tW IS MEMPT FROM 
ACOOH, VIMSS OTHEfrttSE HOTCO. TWS CERTIffCAttOH IS 
HO ™RW5nrW)L& n<£ ABOVE CEmCATIOHE.ARE.MW______

M1H THE PROV.SIOH THAT THE IHfORUAW PROVIDED IS /XCURATE 

WD IWT WMEWMKEKEHTO US® ARE WXWWVf LOWS® 

•b» RttATlW TO THE rnePERfr U?pt

nEqVRSTWG 0tW£. .MflUMY G. KECK & ASSOUAN 

nKQVBSTBD BY? ,, ...________

aiww BYUC 
C^IW BY:

T2
_T

on
T-

cn

RMT0HSTGROUP.NET


Pr
op

er
ty

 A
dd

re
ss

: 15
 M

sr
ie

tte
 D

riv
e,

 P
or

tsm
ou

th
, N

ew
 H

am
ps

hi
re

 0
38

01
Exh’ 11 B ”

WARRANTY DEED

I5 HILDA G. BUSH, being unmarried, of Portsmouth, Rockingham County, New 
Hampshire,

for consideration paid,

grant to EDMUND R. ST. PIERRE,

07ZK WAliRANTY COVENANTS,

A tract of land, with the buildings thereon, situate in Portsmouth, Rockingham County, 
State of New Hampshire, bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at the southerly comer of the premises and on die northwesterly line of land 
now or formerly of Harvey Moulton and on land now or formerly of John Gerasis; thence 
North 39° 28’ West by land now or formerly of Gerasis ninety-four and seven hundredths 
(94.07) feet to an access street leading to land now or formerly of said Gerasis; thence 
North 57° 31 ’ East by said access street one hundred and two and thirty-two hundredths 
(102.32) feet; thence easterly by said street by a curve to the right having a radius of 
twenty-five (25) feet, a distance of thirty-three and thirty-five hundredths (33.35) feet; 
thence South 46° 3 ’ 24” East by an access street leading to land now or formerly of said 
Moulton, now known as Marlette Drive, thirty-one and seventy-one hundredths (31.71) 
feet; thence continuing southeasterly by said Drive by a curve to the right having a radius 
of one hundred and eighty-five (185) feet, a distance of forty-three and eighty-three 
hundredths (43.83) feet; thence South 57° 3 V Westby land now or formerly of said 
Moulton one hundred, twenty-seven and eight tenths (127.8) feet to the point of 
beginning.

Said premises are known as Lot No. 80, as shown on Plan “C”, Maple Haven, Lots 67 to 
78 and 80 to 90, made by Albert Moulton, C. E., dated February 17,1959, said premises 
being subject to the restrictions on said plan.



£<Wf- "b"
T wo certain lots or parcels of land situated in Maple Haven, in the City of Portsmoutli, 
County of Rockingham and State of New Hampshire, being a portion of that parcel of 
land shown as “Mariotte Drive Extension”, on a plan entitled “Plan of Lots, Maple 
Haven, Rev. “A”, Lots 75 to 78 and Lots 80 to 83”, prepared by Moulton Engineering 
Company and more hilly described as follows:

Parcel A:

Beginning at a point in the westerly comer of Lol 80 as shown on said plan, thence N 39° 
28” W by land now or formerly of the heirs of John Gerasis, fifty and thirty-seven 
hundredths (50.37) feet to a point at the Southerly corner of Lot 81 on said plan; thence N 
57° 31 ” E by the sideline of said Lot 81 one hundred eighteen (118) feet to a point in the 
sideline of Marlette Drive, thence S 45° 43’ 20” E, fifty-one and seventy-two hundredths 
(51.72) feet to a point in the sideline ofLot 80, thence S 57° 31’ Why the sideline of Lot 
80, one hundred twenty-five (125) feet to the point of beginning.

Parcel B:

Beginning at a point in the Westerly sideline ofLot 80, which point is 102.32 feet, a 
direction ofN 57° 31’ E from the Southwesterly corner ofLot 80, thence by a curve to 
the right whose radius is 25 feet, an arc length of 33,35 feet to a point on the Westerly 
sideline of Mariette Drive, thenceN 45° 43’ 20” W a distance of 20 feet more or less, 
thence S 57° 31’ W to the point of beginning, meaning and intending to describe a 
triangular parcel of land on the Northwesterly corner ofLot 80.

Parcel A and Parcel B are sold subject to the restriction that no structure shall be built or 
located on the premises other than a structure accessory to an existing building on Lot 80 
as shown on said Plan.

I hereby terminate and release any and all Homestead Rights in said property and further 
certify under the pains and penalties of perjury that there are no other persons entitled to 
claim Homestead Rights in said property.

Being the same premises conveyed to the grantor herein by deed recorded with the 
Rockingham County Registry of Deeds in Book 2549, Page 2886, Deed recorded with 
the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds in Book 2947, Page 0478 and Corrected Deed 
recorded with said Registry dated October 22,1992, Book 2950, Page 0109.

[Signatures on next page]

2



BKma P0198
QOITCIAIM DEED

KNDW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That the City of Pox±strouth, a immicipal 
corporation having its usual place of business v.*, Portsmoith, County of 
Rockingham and State of New Hanpshixe, for consideration paid, grants to 

jq Martin L, Bush and Hilda G. Bush, of said Portsmouth, as joint tenants with
rights of survivorsJa.p, a certain lot or parcel of land with quiuzlaim

O covenants situated In Maple Have in tie city of Portswoxth, County of
Rockingham .and Rtate of Nsw Hartpohixe, being a portion of that parcel of 
land shown as "Marlette Drive Extension", on a plan entitled “Plan of Lots, 
Maple Haven, Rev. "A", Lots 75 to 78 and Lots 80 to 83", prepared fcy 
ttoulton Engineering Company and more fully described as foUcws:

Beginning at a point iu tl^e westerly comer of lot 80 
as shown on said plan, thence N 39° 28" W by land now 
or fornerly of the Heirs of John Gerasis, fifty and 
thirty seven hundredths (50.37) feet to a point at the 
Southerly corner of Lot 81 on said plan? thence N 57” 31" 
E by the sideline of said Lot 81 one hundred eighteen 
(118) feet to a point in the sideline of Marlette Drive, 
thence S 45° 43* 20" E, fifty-one and seventy-two hundredths 
(51.72) feet to a point in the sideline of Lot 80, thence 
s S?* 31“ V? by the sideline of Lot 80, one hundred twenty- 
five (125) feat to the point of beginning.

The within premises are sold subject to the restriction 
that no structure shall be built or located on the premises 
other than a structure accessory to an existing building on 
lot 80 as shewn on said Plan.

Tfe foregoing instrunent was acknowledged before me this. ^ day of 
I 19 J , by Calvin A. Canney, City Manager of the 
| //Uty of Portsmouth, New Hanpshixe, a nunicipal corporation, on behalf of 
1 the corporation. !

o OfWEMH»miL
ra.



Exhibit "ca"

BK2358 P9199
OjHTCLMMPW'Jk

KN3f Mi MEN BIC IHESE PfiESENES, That thn City of Portsmouth, a 
nimicipal corporation havinq its usual place oZ Li’^tnesa in Portsmouth, 
County of Rockingham and State of New Hampshire, for consideration paid, 
grants to Martin L. Rush and Hilda G. Bush, of said Portsmouth, as joint 
tenants with rights of survivorship, a certain lot or parcel of land with 
quitclaim covenants situated in M^ple Haven in U)e City of Portsmouth, 
County of Rockirghsm and state of New Hampshire, being a portion of 
that parcel of land shown as "Marlette Drive Extension”, on a plan 
entitled "Plan of Lots, Maple Haven, Rev. nA”, Lots 75 to 7S and Lots 
80 to 83" t prepared by Moulton Engineering Company and more fully 
described as follcwst

Beginning at a point in the Westerly sideline of Lot 
80, which point is 102.32 feet, a direction of N 57* 31'E 
frcm the Southwesterly corner of lot 80, thence by a curve 
to the right whose radius is 25 feet, an arc length of 33.35 
feet to a point on the Westerly sideline of Marietre Drive, 
thence N 45° 43* 20H W a distance of 20 feet more or less, 
thence s 57° 31’ W to the point of beginning, meaning and 

rtf-vniiha a oaroel of land on the
corner of lot 80/S

This deed is executed on behalf of thejcity of Portsmouth ty 
Calvin A. Canney, City Manager, on the ^a^day of , 19

t9ITNESSs

SDffiE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
ROCKINXAM, SS

cm of pcRTSMOcrni

-The foregoing insinment was acknowledged before me this day of 
t19^y, by Calvin A. Canney, City Manager of the 

City or W^temouth, New Hanpshixe, a irunicipal corporation, on behalf of 
the corporation.

i;!l
t
!
i
)



ExMb/i- tf&Kt   

WARRANTY DEED 2198*0722
Grantor: Raymond J. Bailey, Jr. and Kathleen E. Bailey, 

of FSortsnouth, Rockingham County, New Hampshire

for consideration paid, grant to

Grantee: Martin Luther Bush and Hilda G. Bush, husband and wife,

O of 19 Lilac Lane, Portsmouth, Rockingham County, New Hampshire

as JOINT TENANTS, with rights of survivorship, 
with WARRANTY COVENANT^

co a: *
5= |S Portsmouth MH (80)
g A tract of laud, with the buildings thereon, 'situate in

Portsmouth, Rockingham County, New Hampshire, bounded and described 
oS as followa:-

cr> Beginning at the southerly corner of the premises and
m on the northwesterly line of land now or formerly of Harvey Moulton

= and on land of John Gerasis; thence N. 39° 28' W. by land of 
Gerasis 94.07 feet to an access street leading to land of said 
Gerasis; thence N. 57l 31' E. by said access street 102.32 feet; 
thence easterly by said street by a curve to the right having a 
radius of 25 feet, a distance of 33.35 feet; thence S. 46^ 3* 24" E. 
by an access street leading to land of said Moulton, now known as 
Marlette Drive, 31.71 feet; thence continuing southeasterly by 
said Drive by a curve to the right having a radius of 185 feet, 
a distance of 43.83 feet; thence 3. 57° 31' W. by land of said 
Moulton 127.8 feet to the point of beginning.

Said premises are known as Lot No. 80, as shown on 
Plan "C”, Maple Haven, Lots 67 to 78 and 80 to 90, made 
by Albert Moulton, C. E., dated February 17, 1959, said premises 
being subject to the restrictions as shown on said plan.

Being the same premises conveyed to Raymond J. Bailey, 
Jr. and Kathleen E. Bailey by Cornelius J. Collins, Jr. and 
Elizabeth A. Collins by deed dated April 10, 1968.

The grantor(j) are husband and wife, and

X&3SSSB, release to said grantee all nghtj of curtesy, dower and homestead and other interests therein.

WITNESS QJIT.... hand and seal this . day of February.. 1973.

and acknowledged the fortgoing instrument to be .. free act

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE^ 
UXOH1HAHSKR >^c8mm>s4n - 

Of
——-ma-rn 3 7. 5 0 *—

'*■ employs__________ . A—

U. S. NAVAL STATION. ROOSEVELT ROADS, PUERTO RICO
Date: . ?. ,«SrcA 1211.______ _

Personally appeared Jr» and Kathleen E^.gailey

s. D. PETERSON/XT,'JAGC/uaiT^ 
Notorial Powera par New Haapehlre 
Rev. Stats. Annotated, Ch7h56 12(1968)

..Hl ( C



4/2/24,8 26 AM EkVv 4 £ about blank

City of Portsmouth 

Building Permit
Inspection Department 

1 Junkins Avenue

Portsmouth, NH 03801 

603-610-7243

Permit Number. 

BLDG-23-856 

Date of issue 

Novembers, 2023

Expires-

November 5,2024 

Const. Cost- 

$ 12,000

Owner ST PIERRE EDMUND R

Applicant Edmund St Pierre

Contractor Ed St Pierre, ESP Construction Phone #• 978 766 7748

Location 15MARIETTEDR

Description of Work Residential detached garage renovation This stage of the job does not include adding a second floor Extend the front garage foundation by 5’, the roof overhang to extend an 

additional 2' Proposed changes are 33' from front lot line, 21'from nght side setback, 88'from left setback, and 58' from rear setback The existing footpnnt is 20'x20'w2' apron Proposed footpnnt 

is 20' x 25'. Convert right side stall to workshop with with 1/2 bath 36‘x82” Fiberglass door and 36"x 36" window to match house Siding details will match house Install 2'’ ngid Styrofoam around the 

penmeter to frost protect the slab foundation

Map/Lot. 0292-0167--0000- Use Group Detached Accessory Structure (Shed/Garage)

Occupancy Classification Residential Other- (See R-3) Accessory Constr. Type Type V-B

to Residential Bldg. Code- IRC Edition 2018

Design Occupancy Load

Total # of Dwelling Units.

Remarks. * Per City Ord. Sec 11 502 (F) Street/Umt Number must be affixed to Main Structure as to be plainly visible from the street Construction sites must post the address clearly on 

the property. No site activity allowed before 7:00AM or after 6:00PM No weekend construction allowed

-‘-•-'Please call 603-610-7243 to schedule inspections

• Separate electrical, plumbing and mechanical permits required

* Per Section R109 4 Approval Required Workshall not be done beyond the point indicated in each successive inspection without first obtaining the approval of the building official Do 

not cover or conceal until authorized by the building official

The PERMIT HOLDER has read this permit, the permit application, and the Budding Official's marked-up plans and agrees to perform the work authorized including any conditions or 

requirements indicated thereon, and any stipulations imposed by a Land Use Board in conjunction with the project The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for notifying the Inspection 

Department 48 hours in advance, for FOUNDATION, FRAMING, and FINAL inspections A Certificate of Occupancy is required for all Building Permits. Buildings shall not be occupied 

until ALL inspections (BUILDING, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, MECHANICAL, and FIRE) are complete and Occupancy has been Issued By signing this permit, the owner or his/her 

representative (Permit Holder), authorizes property access by city officials to conduct interior and exterior Inspections and property tax assessments during and/or after the 

construction process

The Permit Card Shall Be Posted and Visible From the Street During Construction.

* Per City Ord Sec. 11.502 (F)Street/Unit Number must be affixed to Main Structure as to be plainly visible from the street Construction sites must post the address clearly on the 

property No site activity allowed before 7 00AM or after 6 00PM. No weekend construction allowed

Code Official This is an e-permll To learn more, scan this barcode or 

visit portsmouthnh viewpointcloud com/#/records/77044



4/6/24, 11:17AM Property - City of Portsmouth, NH - MapGeo

City of Portsmouth, NH

§ Property Q 9 Zoom To f* Share ©Print Property Quick Search Q

^Search Selection

<292?161

292-167

292-1'661

292-229

lews

(https://ww\AllgtR§g^e^^ps/@43.025431,-70.798244,20z?hl=en-C&)
Map.

Created By Print 

(04-06-2024

43.025431,-70.798244

i ©2024 5^2-165

https://portsmouthnh.mapgeo.io/datasets/properties?abuttersDistance=300&latlng=43.025063%2C-70.79818&share=3a95f0f2-9252-4504-a252-c6bb606c47b7&zoom=20

https://ww/AllgtR%25c2%25a7g%255ee%255e%255eps/@43.025431,-70.798244,20z?hl=en-C&
https://portsmouthnh.mapgeo.io/datasets/properties?abuttersDistance=300&latlng=43.025063%252C-70.79818&share=3a95f0f2-9252-4504-a252-c6bb606c47b7&zoom=20


4/1/24, 8:32 AM 20240330_132101.jpg





4/10/24, 8:54 AM 20240409_164912.jpg

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbl#inbox?projector=1

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbl%2523inbox?projector=1


4/10/24, 8:53 AM

13 vV\ari eTfe. Or > 10 ^indjest^

ikSft

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbl#inbox?projector=1

1/2

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbl%2523inbox?projector=1


* |o

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbl#inbox?projector=1
1/2

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbl%2523inbox?projector=1


22  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

D. The request of Elizabeth M. and Torben O. Arend (Owners), for property 
located at 1 Rockaway Street whereas relief is needed to construct a porch 
and mudroom onto the front of the existing structure which requires the 
following: 1) Variance from Section 10.521 to allow a 24 foot front yard where 
30 feet is required. Said property is located on Assessor Map 230 Lot 11 and 
lies within the Single Residence B (SRB) District. (LU-24-46) 

Existing & Proposed Conditions 
 Existing  

  
Proposed  
  

Permitted / 
Required  

  

Land Use: Single 
family 
dwelling  

*Construct an 
addition and front 
porch to the front of 
the primary structure 

Primarily 
residential 

  

Lot area (sq. ft.): 31,363 31,363 15,000 min.  

Lot Area per Dwelling  
Unit (sq. ft.):  

31,363 31,363 15,000 min.  

Street Frontage (ft.): 100 100 100 min.  
Lot depth (ft.): 121 121 100 min.  
Front Yard (ft.): 30 24 30 min.  
Left Yard (ft.): >10 >10 10 min.  
Right Yard (ft.): 20 20 10 min. 
Rear Yard (ft.): >40 >40 30 min.  
Height (ft.): <35 <35 35 max.  
Building Coverage (%):  6.5 7 20 max.  
Open Space Coverage (%):  >40 >40 40 min.  
Parking  2 2 2   
Estimated Age of Structure:  1933 Variance request(s) shown in red.  

  
 

Other Permits/Approvals Required 
• Building Permit  



23  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Neighborhood Context  

 

  

Aerial Map 

Zoning Map 



24  

May 21, 2024 Meeting 

Previous Board of Adjustment Actions 
No previous history found. 

Planning Department Comments 
The applicant is requesting relief to construct a front porch addition which will consist of a 6’ 
by 9’ 6” mudroom and a 6’ by 19’ 6” covered porch. This addition is proposed to be located 
24 feet from the front lot line. 

Variance Review Criteria 
This application must meet all five of the statutory tests for a variance (see Section 10.233 
of the Zoning Ordinance): 

1. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest. 
2. Granting the variance would observe the spirit of the Ordinance. 
3. Granting the variance would do substantial justice. 
4. Granting the variance would not diminish the values of surrounding properties. 
5. The “unnecessary hardship” test: 

(a) The property has special conditions that distinguish it from other properties in the area. 
AND 
(b) Owing to these special conditions, a fair and substantial relationship does not exist 

between the general public purposes of the Ordinance provision and the specific 
application of that provision to the property; and the proposed use is a reasonable one. 
OR 
Owing to these special conditions, the property cannot be reasonably used in strict 
conformance with the Ordinance, and a variance is therefore necessary to enable a 
reasonable use of it. 

10.235 Certain Representations Deemed Conditions 
Representations made at public hearings or materials submitted to the Board by an 
applicant for a special exception or variance concerning features of proposed buildings, 
structures, parking or uses which are subject to regulations pursuant to Subsection 10.232 
or 10.233 shall be deemed conditions upon such special exception or variance. 



March 28, 2024 

 

Re: 1 Rockaway Street ZBA Application  

 

 

Dear Chairperson and Board Members, 

My client and homeowner Torben Arend at 1 Rockaway Street is seeking your approval 
for a front setback relief to allow for a mudroom addition and front covered porch to his 
home.  

The existing structure is a single-family residence with approximately 2,950 s.f. of living 
space within a cape style home with a one car attached garage. The lot is 
approximately .72 acres (31,363 s.f.) in the Single Residence B (SRB) zoning district. 
The existing structure conforms with all current zoning dimensional requirements for the 
SRB district.  

The new 6-foot addition on the front of the existing house would create a new proposed 
front setback of 24 feet where 30 feet is required. Currently there is no mudroom or front 
entry area and as you can imagine in older cape homes the front door is typically right in 
front of the stairs to the second floor making it very crowded to navigate around. The 
new mudroom is only 6 feet deep by 9 feet – 6 inches wide and will allow a much more 
comfortable transition of an entry space into the home. The remainder of the 6-foot front 
addition will be an open covered porch to keep the style and feel of the cape house 
intact as well as providing relief from weather upon entering the home. The structure will 
also remain a single-family residence. 

We feel the variance will not be contrary to the public interest because the design and 
style is harmonious with the current house and looks as though it belongs naturally from 
the beginning. The house is also on the end of a dead-end street with very minimal 
traffic. 

The spirit of the ordinance will be observed in that all of the neighboring homes are also 
20 feet or less from their front property line so it will fit in with the rest of the 
neighborhood.  

We also believe this is why substantial justice will be done and the values of 
surrounding properties will not be diminished if this application is approved because all 
of the surrounding properties are similar in scale and depth to the street or are even 
closer than 24 feet and this new addition will therefore fit in seamlessly with the 
neighborhood and not be more detrimental. 
 



Literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would result in an unnecessary 
hardship in that the new entryway provides a much easier way to navigate through the 
front entry of the home as well as a closer travel distance from the street, especially as 
the homeowner plans to age in place. A small ramp could also be added to the side of 
the covered porch in the future to allow easier accessibility to the home. Also, again, we 
feel it would only be fair for the homeowner to have the same rights as his neighbors to 
have his structure closer to the street. 
 
 

We appreciate your time and consideration for this application. 

 

Sincerely, 

Chris Crump  
CWC Design LLC 
978-397-3233 
chris@cwc-design.com 

















. . <" . C'' . 

'/ ·.·_ 
(;/ / ·. \ 
r ( . I 

S:-<::-___ l __ .~~~-·-- ;· 
' ' \ \_ 

I I -.. / 
! ' / 

I 

LOT R- 30 LOT 12 
N/F 

FREDERICK & DOROTHY 
KEENE 

JUNKINS AVE 
PORTSMOUTH,N.H 03801 

1652/0056 

LOCATION PLAN MAP R- 30 LOT 16 
N/F 

I 
,I 

\EDGE OF PAVE"" ·-· 
j 

PAUL V. BROWN 
1246 SOUTH SJ. 

PORTSMOUTH,N.H 03801 
19251496 

FOUND 

'o 
lfl JU3NKINS 

CONC RLLED 

IRON PIPE ~ -:------_JL~E._.:.:...:~ / t.. S 87'- 40'- 51" E --
CHAIN LINK 

FENCE 

~ 
BOUND 

I CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY PLAT SHOWS 
THE PROPERTY LINES THAT ARE THE LINES 
OF EXISTING OWNERSHIPS AND THAT THE LINES 
OF STREETS AND WAYS SHOWN ARE THOSE 
OF PUBLIC OR PRIVATE STREETS OR WAYS 
ALREADY EST A BUSHED AND THAT NO 
NEW LINES FOR DIVISION OF EXISTING 
OWNERSHIP OR FOR NEW WAYS ARE 
SHOWN. 

MAP R-30 LOT 17 
N/F 

ELVIRA E.ROWE 
14 E. GROVE ST. 

FARMINGTON, N.H. 03835 

FOUND GRANITE 
BOUND 

~ 
MAP R - 30 LOT 1 8 ·-.......... · 

N/F 
RIC HARD M. CY R 

P.O. BOX 6562 
PORTSMOUTH,NH 03801 

;'649/1079 

I 

MAP R- 21 LOT 21 
N/F 

AREA LOT 11 
19,213 S. F 
0.441 Ac 

MAP R- 30 LOT 11 
NANCY M. CAREY 

1 ROCKAWAY ST. 
PORTSMOUTH,N.H.03801 

2330 I 899 

SCREVEN MEMORIAL 
BAPTIST CHURCH 

LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR 

PLAN REFERENCE: 
SEE'PLAN OF HIGHLAND VIEW" 
PORTSMOUTH,N. H. SCALE 11NCH= 

LAFAYETTE ROAD 
PORTS MOUTH ,N.H. 03801 

27711986 

120.77' 

2 STORy 
WOoD 

FRAME 
HOUSE: 

-:...,. -- ""· 

STONE 

r.\ - S Bi' WALL 
Y.l - - - ·26"-56" I ----E~ 
· ssoo· --,. . -

fi 
!"I 
"' o;/· .,,8 
70 
t,f!ll 
zt 
I 
I 

AREA LOT 10 
9,073 S.F 
0.208 Ac. 

~ .,. 
' I 
81 
CJI/ 

-. T--1 

~SETIR 

t 

MAP R-30 LOT 10 
N/F 

NANCY M. CAREY 
1 ROCKAWAY ST. 

1.Li PORTSMOUTH, N.H.03801 

0 

. I~ 
QJ -
I") I") 
c.i ,., 
a5 •' 

<D 
0 

2651 /1956 

0\ 
I") 

0 
;;!: 

AVE./ 

SETIR~ 
l. 

- • I 
• 

0\ 
I") 

0 
7 
rv 

2 
(/) 

f 

.. -

i 
-l 
-l 

-~ 
(!) 

~ 
<: 
;:! 
lLJ 
0:: 

lLJ 
<: 
0 .... 

(/) 

' 

40 FEET,JULY1919 BY JOHN W. 
DURGIN C E PORTSMOUTH, N H -RCRD 
PLAN No. 0248. 

:): /SET IR ="".:P' lv- ~r:=:::>~ .-d£J~=c:::c:;> 
. -~""' . 02 w 

;, 6200 =-=--- 75•-S2-, ,.... .. !;>:~ s 
SET IR~===- .....--

..::> 

---- N /F 
CHURCH OF JESUS CHRIST 
REAL ESTATE DIVISION 50 

E.N. TEMPLE 
SALT LAKE CITY, UTAH 84150 

1524 I 248 I 

N/F 
CITY OF PORTSMOUTH, N.H. 

126 DANIEL ST. 
P.O. BOX 628 

PORTSMOUTH, N H 03801 
1985 I 379 

lLJ .r 
0 

UP 

t 

MAP R- 30 LOT 8 
N/F 

SERENA JONES 
4 J~KINS AVE. 

PORTSMOUTH.N H.03801 
20331406 

- -
\. 

MAP R- 30 LOT9 
N/F 

ROY & IRENE 
PETERSON 
6 ROCKAWAY ST. 

PORTSMOUTH, N H.03857 
1024/29 

1 ) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

7) 

UP 
OHE 

SET IR 

NOTES: 
THESE PARCELS ARE DESCRIBED IN R.C.R.D. 

" " 

" .. 

" " 

BK.2330 PG. 899. 8 2651-1956 
" SHOWN ON PORTSMOUTH 

ASSESSORS MAP R- 30 AS 
LOT 10&11. 

" NOT LOCATED IN A 
FLOOD HAZARD ZONE. 

" LOCATED IN ZONE SR2 
(SINGLE RESIDENCE 2 ). 

OWNER OF RECORD 
NANCY M.CAREY 

1 ROCKAWAY STREET 
PORTSMOUTH, N.H. 

THIS PARCEL IS SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS, 
CONDITIONS AND RESERVATIONS DESCRIBED 
IN R.C.R.D.BK_923 PG.368 AND BK.934 PG.69. 
TOTAL AREA OF PARCEL= 28,286 S. F. =0.65 Ac 

LEGEND: 
UTILITY POLE 
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC 
SET IRON ROD 

PLAN OF LAND 
FOR 

NANCY M. CAREY 
ROCKAWAY STREET 

COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM 

PORTSMOUTH/ N.H. 
SCALE: 1'= 20" DATE- APRiL 1987 

REV 10/6 '8 7 

20 15 10 5 0 

Ei!j \j r:"J 
6543210 5 10 15 20 

RICHARD P MILLETTE A~JD ASSOCIATES 
NOBLE'S ISLAND,500 tv11-\RKE T STREET 
PORTSMOUTH, N H 03801 

86184 

METERS 



+ 
'20' 0' 6' o" "'r/- 43' rz,• 

PT SL.L. 
611..1.. G.A.sr<E:T I 

/"!I !/'2" ~!GO roi\M INSU../\TioN 

v a· co~re; SL.Af:l :fl-=~~~~~-=~~~~-ll: 

I II 2 II l 

1
1 

, 11 ; 

II L ~- "'"""' . II I 
II II I 

I 
11_ _ _ _ _ _ :-s~_ _ _ -, 11 

1 W ~eU../\ reo eL.I\e> oe:r 1\IL. 
L__--------- --1 ,, ~SCAlE: 1"•1'-o" ,.... I I 

I ,- - - - - - -r- - - -1 II II L - - .-- - - - - 1- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - I 

Jl ...-

I· 
5' 0" 

8" WI\L.L. lr-- )I 

I I 
,-

MO\.IE: EXIST. CONC. ~J\D 
Ofi: PF<OVI?E Ne:W IF ~~ 
'2' CI\P SL..Af:l CoNNECTION 
TO EXISTING ~.A.S~ 

- -r-- - - - - --- ---=:~ 

+---1-.--

1 I {)\ 
I I I II II '-r---_-.=--+-r---_-_+t--_-..:::::-_,t-f---+...:::::--::_--------_+------~--rl I I I - - - - - - - - -

~e~· 10" I I ~ --------- '2' r;,· I I r ~OP w.....u.. F~ 
I 1 1 I 11 _i.f>_.__1r- ~/\WL..-S-P/\_CE __________ --111---------' t---ni--=--:±~=~~~-E:-tt-+n __ CJ:<_"w_~.-_SP_I\CE __ "_c:e:_s_s _______ l-'-! l_en~ 
I I I 11 jl I ... I e:xsT. ~ 1

' r-

GIV<I\G'C. I I ! OPE:NING I 
I I 3' CONC. SL./'P WI I I II I' rD' I 
I I 

r;,xrz,, wr.4 x W1.4 wwM 1 I +- I 
o~~ ro Mt.. POL. y v 1\P~ e>~~ a· 5 1/'2"1 I 1 _.:1 ~ I ! ---

oVE:F": r;,• cow /\C'T6? ~1\ \.Ia. I .... ~>+------- ~ I ~ I ! J > ~ 

II ---.---- - _j~: II I ~;;0~ !! 

\...P I 1- -=- ::J II I (TYP.l 

4" MIN.I ,, ,, I I I ~ r I 

I II II L 
--'------1----

1 II II 
-~, II II I - - '---- - - - - 1--- -

I I 11 11 I 

I L ______ J Lh--=--=--=-·J I 

1'2' 4 1/'2" 

'-------------~ 

'2' 4" 8' 4' ~· 4" 

I 

F oUNO 1\ TION PL..I\N 
SC/\L.E: : l/4" == 1'-o" 

••• F'~ST F'L.oOF< t'€1~T ~ 'C.XIST~ & 1'\PPITION TO tv11\T01. 
COO~INI'\TE: I\OOITION TOP oF F'OlWI\TION TO V~Fy THIS. 

~ 

t t 
1------1 
r-----l 

EXIST. WI\L.L. 

EXIST. ST~UC~ 

.A. 

011'\L..U<ING _,- e 

'2-"'5 e>/\FtS CONT. / ~ 
8' 

W.A.L.L. 

J 

, 
'2o' o" t t oN Ci=<OSS seCTIONS 

N C/ T E: e: 

t Dimensions where provided shall take precedent over scale of 
Drawings. Contractor to measure and verify all dimensions at work. 

2. Interpretation of Contract Documents: Contractor shall promptly notify the Architect 
of any ambiguity, inconsistency or error which they may discover upon examination 
of the Contract Documents, the Site or Local Conditions. If the Contactor 

knowingly does not notify the Architect of any such ambiguity, inconsistency or error 
they therefore accept such conditions and will make such additions or corrections 
necessary to properly complete the work, at their expence 

3. Perform all work of this CONTRACT according to all Local, State or National Codes 

and/or Ordinances. Secure all Permits Required. 

4. Coordinate with the OWNER installation of: hardwired smoke alarms 

cable tv & audio wiring 

telephone & computer wiring 

MAY 
1 r<.o~I'\W 1'\ y err<.e:Er 
ORI'\WIN~ 

P Of<.TSMOUTH, NH 

I,IST 

1\ - I 

/\-'2 

1\-3 

/\-4 

1\-5 

1\-tb 

FoLW 1\ TION Pl../\N 

Fir<.ST A..o~ PL../\N 

Sf:C'Of\0 F~~ PL./\N & aev 1\ TIONS 

~NT & FEM aEV 1\TIONe 

a<.oss SE:'CTIONS 

GMI\~ ~S Sf:CTION 

- r 

EXIST. Oo~ 

I 
FoUNOI\TION PL..I\N 

9 Sheefe Street 
Paismoulh 
N-l 03001 
fl03.427-2832 l/1 
ANNE WHITNEY A R C H I T E C T 

1\00ITIONS & RE:NoV 1\ TIONS, Ml\ Y Rf::SIOE:NCE 

--""'-



I 

w I N 0 
SYM u.~rr 

0 CMT2634 

® CMT2634 

® DHG2640 

® 
DHG2646 
2WIOE 

® DHG2646 

ellpse plctlre 

([) 0~ 
2 - A 'l/o.M2flf.30 

Relocate 

0 Exist. 
6x8 

® VS-306 

w' o• (D' 0' 

I \ 

I 
@) 

I I 
I I 

)v IV~TEEXST>« GN</\GE OooF<e 
& HN<OW~ 
F.~ /".F{ & F.EFI'IISH 

0 

u-rea 

type1 

type1 

6/1 

6/1 

6/1 

type2 

12/12 

1\S NECEsSMY 

w 
~OPal~ 

2' -6 1/2" X 3' -4 1/2" 

2' -6 1/2" X 3' -4 1/2' 

2' -6 1/2" X 4' -0 1/2' 

5' -0 1/2" X 4' -6 1/2' 

2' -6 1/2" X 4' -6 1/2' 

MANLF. DETERMINE 

+/- 2' 6' X 4' 9" 
field determine 

301/2" X 46 7/8" 

s c. H e: 0 u L.. e: 
~6 

Eagle Inc., a.AD CASEivENT w/ 7/8' tvbdern 
Divided Utes', LowE Glazing, White Interior 
H3rdware, Claddirg & Screen Coler - WHi1E 
& Prime Interior. 

DITIO, fixed window 

Eagle Inc., TL T a.AD DOl..BLEI-l..N3 w/ 7/8' Modern 
Divided Lites', Low E Glazing, White Interior 
Ha-dwcre, Cladding & Screen Colcr - WHITE 
& Prime Interior. 

DITIO 

DITIO 

Eagle Inc., a..AD aJSTOiv1 aiPTICAL PICn.RE 
& AWNING, Low E Glazing, White hterlor 
Hardware, Cladding & Screen Color - WHITE 
& Prime lnta-lor. 

Relocate existing dotble hung & storm window 

"VELUX", ventilating skylight w/ screen & 

6' to 10' marual rod. 

3 

1 

10 

2 

5 

4 

1 

2 

fb' o• 

l' w' e,· w" +/- 1 r o· 

:3' (D' :0' $" 

:3' (b" 

l' w" 

Wt:OOW NoTes: 

I. eue>MT FI'W... WWt:::AA/ ~ TO AA01!Teer eeF~ ~tlG 

'2. 1:~ Wt:Ot:::IW ~TO MI\T01 E:'XISTING. 

+!- 4:0' w' 

PAT I~ 

S'(M. etz:E: WXM 

CD 
FDI5068 A/1 
R0 = 60 112' X 80 1/2' 

® 
FDI2668 X 3 1/A/1 
R0 = 90 1/2' X 80 1/2' 
VERIFY W/ Mp.J\JLF, 

I 
1ST FL..OOR PL..I\N 

+/- 10' $" 

tu.J<H!:-"" 
see Fi'Pr. PL.AN 
C)WG. 1\-1 

L~ 

8' o/' 

lr 

(\ FIRST FL.OOF< PL./\N 
SCI"\i.E 1/4" = 1'-o" 

~.APe 'TYf'E: 

Eagle Inc., CLAD PATIO DOOR manuf. 
Low E Glazing, Cladding & Screen 

lockset Color - White, prime Interior. 

ditto 

9 Sheafe Street 
Portsmou1h 
N-1 03001 
603427-2832 

ditto) triple unit 

7// 
Project: 

-~ 

ANNE WHITNEY A R C H I T E C T 1\-2 

..__------------------------------------------------------------------------------~-A0--0-iT-Io--Ne __ & __ R_~_N_o_v_~_T_Io--Ne __ ,_M_~_Y __ R_~_e_IP_~_N_cE __ l~ ___ : ____ ~-----L_ I ~Cl<I\W/\Y e~ P~~, N'1 r 



MI\Ta1 ~or ~IM 
TO E:XISTING f<.E:SOE:Nc:E: ( TYP. ) 

\) 
'r 

Cl..I\P~O M09 
MI\Ta-1 E:XSIT. TO WC:I\TH~ 

~ 
:::0. 

DO ~ 

DO 
~ 

~ 
DO 6E:E: Pf<.I\WING 1\-5 

FOf<. SUN~OM ~e SC:CTk:::'N 

oc_ 
\) ill 

2 

~ ~ 
~ a. 

"Mof<.G.A.N" 1v1-1oo, .z· 8' x ro· 8" 

SCI\l.E : 1/4" = 1'-o" 

~ 
:::0. 

~ 

~ 

\) 
'r EEBEEBEEB EEBEEBEEB 

.l 

I 

~ ~ ct..~OMOe 

MI\Ta-1 E:XSIT. TO WE:I\Tf"'1E:R 

SCI\l.E : 1/4" = 1'-o· 

NoTE:e: /, OIMe:Ne~Ne W~ Pf<.OVOEP eHI\U.. T 1\f<E: Pf<.E:ca?E:NT OVE:f<. eC:I\l..E: or Of<.~\ WINGS. 

CONTI\CTOF<. SHI\I..L. lv!E:AeUf<.E: & 'v'f;:f<.f'Y 1\L.L. ONE:Ne~Ne AT WOF<.i<. 

(// 3" l' (o" (o' 3" 

0 0 
~r- I 
I RIN'lll\ I 

I 
PROP~ 

lEI\$ I ' 
l = - _ _j I ! -
~ I ~ 

I 
3' 4 1/'2" -t-/- 4' o• 

~ 
! ! ...... I. [L 

0 
~ I 
~ e.q. 

~ )< 
,-cnP!iT II 

~ k== 

I we>e:c-' !I? """""'' 
@) 

:! 

! 
I I 
t '2 

STOJ'<.. 

@) wooo 
~ : 

PL.I'\ YF<.OOM 
!! 

I !! 

4 ST Of<.. c:l..oeE:T WI STI\IR II C:l\f<.PE:T Ooof<.S IX T&G 'v'f;: 
I ~I 

/; "'-""'<Y """""> & M ! ! ll 
Sj 

! I I! 
l' 

I !I il: !' L! ./ STAA GU~ I >- l• 

0 .!:; 
• 3W" FFF~ 

~ ~ 
!! 

~ WooO TOP !l 

""". I '·~ ' ~ I 

I / \ 

1\Gl-ETIC: C:l\ T Q1 

0 ~ 

I ' 
I "'.r 

® ~ )< 

I -:n 1\~ 
I 
~ 

I H1l -
~ I ' 

r-- - I E:NTF<.Y F<.OoF - .. ,. 
I I \\} )< OVE:f<.MI\NG 

\[) "c-~ 

i I 

I 
~ 

I 

0 
to' d' 10' c1' 

I l/1 
Project: 

·~ 

'2~ FL.. G~>P-1'\a:. PL.I\N 
GAAI'\GfE SlOE: aEV 1'\ Tk:::'NS 

ANNE WHITNEY A R C H I T E C T 1'\-3 
' P.Pa<I\WI\Y 9~ P~TSM:::VIT1, N'1 

/\OOITIONS & RENOVATIONS, MAy RE:SIOE:NcE IRevfslons: /-

L--------------~-------



/\ ~WWOWSN~-~S ~~ ~1\lee rE.NJe::~ H~T" see;: @ 

/ I\ I ~ e::xsriN~ Poi<~ 

v I tEE II 
'\ 

I I 
I I I I , 

! 

® 0 0 
I I I I 

/v 
I~ ~ \ 

I I I 

®/ I I , I 

I 
I; 

- _j I _j _jL _ -

' 

§-m 
I 

------------------

® 
~CI\TE: 

E:XI6TING 
~~1"\Gf; P.::::>or<e 

f-'----1 & HMDW ~, 

ec.I\I.E : 1/4" - r-d 

NOTE:e: 1. Pl'v'aeiONe ~ PROVOt=P SMI\W.. T 1\1-!E: Pi<E:CE:l?ENT .::::>~ 6CI"\l£ c;tP ~1\WI~S 
CONTACT~ SMI\L.l.. IV€~ & VE:~Fy 1\U.. OIMEN610N6 1\T WOf<fo{, 

I 

I I 

tEE I I 

® 
I I 

II I 

~ ® 

- - -

.NJPITION 

I' 

I 
I 

0 
!\ 

\ 

\ 

-----

[i] []] 
I I 

~ ~ ~ ~ 

® ® 

LJ LJ LJ LJ 
-

-

I 

~ 
-

-

~ 

e::x. 

\ 

Q Sheafe Street 
Pcrtsmouth 
N-1 03801 
~27-2832 

-

-

® ® 

- - - --
- - - - -

.I tm I 
~ 

/ 

CD I\ 
\ 

\ 
\ - - -

SC.I\I.E : 1/4" • 1'-.::::>" 

l/1 
Project: . ~'"" 

ANNE WHITNEY ARCH IT E C T /\-4 
AOOITioNs & F<E:NoV r... TloNs, Mr... y F<EsiOE:NcE IPsvlsicllS: } 
I fl.e:J(J.i/\W/\Y eTFEeT P~T~, H1 

~------------------------------~------------~--~ _, 



~1\N!C 1\eF'Iii'\L. T eH~, ' ~o ' 
o~ l!:l* FaT e>LJLPI'IG PI\P~ 

e>l~ ICE: & WI\~ SHa.D 
• e:ve:s & SO!: Wt\1..1, CON'eCTIONS 

~/8" Pt-yWooO et'EATH~ 

I'ISU.-1\TION, ~· POL.yu:E~ SPFV\Y 1'1 PL.Aa::, 
~-1 F'e:F: I ' 

r ro· 

/ 

I 

I 3/4" X 14' Ml~L-1\M 
FtOGE e>E:I\M WITH 
'2XrJ; L.Et:?~ Fof't Fti\FTE:'Fte 

1/'2" GYP. W. oveFt 
IX STI't.i"IPPING 

3/4" r&G PL. YWD. ~OFt 
Nl\ & Gt..UED 

I 

CJ<.I\ WL.. 6P 1\et:: 
FIELO PET. HGT. 

0--S::=---=C=-T.:....:k:?=----N ....:....1\...:...:T--=SU....:_NR.~o~oM::......_:._ 
\Q sc......u:= : 1/'2' - r-oo 

:3 - '2X8 GIF-T 

POST W/ L-1\J...!...Y 
1\ T Mit:?-9P 1\N 

z· coNe. c.AP ove~ 
(o MI... Pc?L.Y V/\POF't e>~E:Ft 
over:<. 4" CoMP 1\CTE't:? G~l\ veL. 

0 

~rveo cEOAA a..I\PC).::?~, 
MI\Ta-1 TO WE:!\~ E:XP~ 
T 0 E:XIST~ l1oi..J6e: 
"T'r'Va<" 1\~ ~'FL. Tl'tl\ TION e>~Eft 

1/'2' Pi-YW .::?ot:? SIEI\ Tt1~ 

'2 X (o • f(o' oC 

NSU...A.Tk?N,ro"F~ss 

V 1\POF't e>~Eft 

l/'2' ~. W. ~~ FINISH 

E:'XIST TOP Pt-1\TE:' _ __..

'2- '2X4 I""E:~ '2 NEW Wlt'OOWS 

S::CTk::?N 1\T L..CJN<;;; I\OOITI~ 

ec......u:= : t/'2" - r-o• 

~NF<OOM & L.ONG 

9 Sheafa Street 
Portsr'r1wth 
N-l 00801 
600-427-2832 

I 3/4" X 14" V-L. OF 800 

VE:'f<.S/\-L-1\M" ~1\M 
1..1\G T .:::' EXISTING ~fM ..k::'IST 

FL.USM Ff<.~ W/ H~S EXIST. -JOISTS 
EXST. !'tiM .JOIST 

MI\TCH NeW SL.e-FL.OOFt 

T 0 E:XISTING sue>-FL.OOR 

EXIST. 1ST A.. f'Fti\MING 

7-11 Proja:Jt: 
• '20I.ot 

.AOPITION SECTIONS 

._--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~--------------------A-N_N_E_W __ H-IT_N_E_Y ___ A_R_C_H __ IT_E_C_T~--------~-1\----__ ~/ .N?OITioNs & ~!::NoV 1\ TloNs, Ml\ Y ~EsiOE:NcE' IAEMslons' 
I P-e:?Cl<I\W 1\ Y ellEeT P~TeMOI.JTH, M1 



• 

TOP of' 

TOP of' 

1'2 +l-5v 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

PL. .A. YRO OM 

5/4" T~G PL-YWO. SUe>f'L.O~ 
Nl\l.EO & Gl...l.JE:O 

'2X !J • lfP" oC: 

\_ 1/'2" f'~t=C:OOE "C GYP. e>O. 
~ POL.Y VI\P~ e>~ER 

OVER. IX STRI\PPING 1\ T C'EIL.ING oNL. Y 
( I l'1.c:'lJR st=P 1\R./\ TION ) 

GM/\G"e 
3" CoNe. 91..1\e> WI 

f'PX(Q1 Wl.4 X Wl.4 WWN 
~ (}; MIL.. POL. Y V 1\PO~ e>~ER 

oVER. (};" COM" 1\CTEO G~l\ va 

tiJ MI.. POL. Y V /V'Of'/. f'>MF.f'!.Ef'( 
.0\IEFl V;" Mt-1. COI'IP 1\Crt:O ~1\ va 
C TYP·) 

!J" C:oNC:. F~ST W 1'\l..l.. 

WI rOOTING ON u-PIS~ SOL 
STEP rOOTING 1\S ~c:;:::>UI~ 

To NI\INT 1\lN fROST OeFTH 

fc\r--G"--'Mc.......::_;I\__;GE.:;___se;=.:.__::c=-.:r='o:;__N __ _ 
\:::._) SC:I\IE : 1/'2" • 1'-0" 

~ANIC ASPHI\L. T eH~, • a<o " 
~ e• FaT ww~ P~ 

e>I1'\JTt"EE'.e ICE ~ W 1\ ~ SHE\.0 
• E:ve:s & sDe W 1\U... C~TIONS 

~18' PL. yWo.:::O et"E'I\ Ttl~ 

I\ISUI,I\ TION1 ~· POL-Y~ 9PPtl\ Y t-1 PL-1\cE, 
~-'1 ~I • 

'2X!J $ ~· OC WI '2XIO ~OGE 

'2Xf'P f'INISila/ f'R 
TE:S • 4' c?" oc 
f/'2" c9fp, e>O. oVt=R. ------
IX ST~I\PPNG -------------

SISTER- ENT~Y .JOISTS 

TO GI\R.I\GE ~1\f'~S 

,--- ENTR-Y Roof' CI\NTIL.E:VE~EO 
f'aP e>Ut..O T~USS 

~......eo a:PAA ~oAAOe, 
MATa-1 TO WE:I\~ S:XP~S: 
To EXIST~ Hoi.JSES 
"TYVe:l<" 1\R I'FL:n~A TION f>~~ 

11'2" PL-yWOoD 91"1ei\TH~ 

'2 X tiJ • lf/J" OC 

~1\TION,~F~ss 

V M t:7fll. f>I\AAEP. 

liZ c;yp, eo. NT~IOI< f't-IISH 

I 9 Sheafe Street 
Portsmouth 
f\1-i 03801 
628427-2882 

Project: .. ~,... 7// 
ANNE WHITNEY ARCHITECT 1\-(0 

L---------------------------------------------------------------------------------~-~---O-IT-Io~N_s __ & __ ~_~N_o __ v_A_r_'o~N_s_, __ M_A_Y __ ~_~_s_'o_~ __ ce __ l~ ___ : ____ ~-----L _.:'. I ~/\WAY e~ P~T~, M'1 r _ 






	5-21-2024 Agenda
	4-16-2024 Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	4-30-2024 Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	86 Haven Rd
	Staff Memo
	Application
	Cover Letter
	Project Narrative
	Variance Analysis
	Front Yard Exhibit
	Exisiting Boundary Survey
	Proposed Site Plan
	Exterior Elevations
	Floor Plans
	Map Locator
	Site Photos


	581 Lafayette Rd
	Staff Memo
	Application
	Cover Letter
	Owner Authorization
	Existing Western Facing Facade Signs
	Existing Northern Facing Facade Sign
	Locator Map


	505 US Rt 1 Byp
	Staff Memo
	Withdrawal Letter

	137 Walker Bungalow Rd
	Staff Memo
	Application
	Cover Letter
	Exterior Elevation
	Floor Plan
	Site Plan
	Site Photos


	5 Cleveland Rd
	Staff Memo
	Application
	Cover Letter
	Variance Criteria
	Pre-Construction Photos
	Sample Fence Images
	Retaining Wall Photos
	Site Plan
	Constructed Wall Photos
	July 18, 2023 Letter of Decision


	15 Mariette Dr
	Staff Memo
	Application
	Cover Letter
	Variance Analysis
	Proposed Driveway Plan
	Exhibit A: Boundary Plan
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit C2
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit E
	Map Geo Snapshot
	Site Photo
	Proposed site conditions
	Surrounding Property Photos


	1 Rockaway St
	Staff Memo
	Application
	Cover Letter
	Variance Criteria
	Floor Plans
	Exterior Elevations
	Site Plan
	Foundation and Building Plans
	Site Photos





